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Independent Auditors l Report 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the To"'Wll of Lebanon f Connecticut, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed-in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticutls management. Our responsibility is to express opinions 
on these finandal statements based on oUr audit. 

We conducted OUI audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
and the State Single Audit Act (C.Gs. Sections 4-230 to 236). Those standards and the State Single Audit Act require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and discloS1Ues in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 21, 2013, on our consideration of 
the To"WTI of Lebanon, Connecticut's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of th·at testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis 
on pages 3 through 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers itto be an essential part ot financial 
reporti.r).g for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparmg the information for consistency with management' s responses to our mqumes, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us "With sufficient evidence to express an opinion or p.rovide any 
assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town of 
Lebanon, Connecticut's financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements, and other 
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are nota required 
part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits afStates, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures 
of state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State Single Audit Act, and is also 
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not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements, other supplementary 
information, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our-opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Stephen T. Hopkins, CPA, PC 

~ c. 
_. 

January 21, 2013 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's financial performance provides an overview of the Town's 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 3D, 2012. Please read this analysis in conjunction with the basic financial statements, 
notes to the basic financial statements, and requITed supplementary information of the Tovvn. This management discussion and 
analysis is being presented for the current fiscal year with a focus on the comparative analysis of the information on the 
governmental activities of the Tovvn as found in the government-wide financial statements. 

Financial Highlights - Government--wide financial statements 

The Town's total assets exceeded its total liabilities by $38,631,168 (net assets) as of the end of the current fiscal year. This 
compares to the prior fiscal year when total assets exceeded total liabilities by $37,566,037 as restated. This represents a 
favorable increase of approximately 2.83%. 

The Town's invested in capital assets, net of related debt net asset balance is used to account for the total capital assets of the 
Town reduced by the total accumulated depreciation on those assets, reduced by the total outstanding debt incurred to 
purchase those assets. The total mvested in capital assets, net of related debt net asset balance of the Town was $30,557,278 
(79.10 % of total net assets) as of the end of the current fiscal year. 11ris compares to the prior fiscal year balance of $32,474,524 
(86.45% of total net assets) as restated. This represents a decrease of approximately 5.90% which is the result of new short-term 
debt in the amount of $5,100,000, a decrease in the related long-term debt of $650,566, current depreciation in the amount of 
$1.,568,652 and current net capital asset additions in the amount of $4,100,840. These fixed asset additions were made up in 
large part of $2,862,161 in costs related to the Amston lake sewer construction project 

The Town's restricted net assets are used to account for funds received with constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or other rules and regulations as imposed by other governments or enabling legislation. These net assets cannot 
be used to finance the day-to-day activities and operations of the Town. The total restricted net asset balance of the Town was 
$3,440,596 (8.91 % of total net assets) as of the end of the current fiscal year. This compares to the prior fiscal year balance of 
$3,245,394 (8.64 % of total net assets). This represents .!in increase of approximately 6.01 %. 11ris increase is due in large part 
to an increase in the fair value of restricted investments within the Trumbull investments fund of $98,373. 

The Town's umestricted net' asset balance is the component of net assets which is used to finance the day-to-day activities and 
operations without constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or other rules and regulations as imposed by other 
governments or enabling legislation. The total unrestricted net asset balance of the Town was $4,633,294 (11.99% of total net 
assets) as of the end of the current fiscal year. This compares to the prior fiscal year balance of $1,846,119 (4.91 % of total net 
assets) as restated. This represents a favorable increase of approximately 150.97%. 

The To-wn's total revenues for its governmental activities were $27,645,836 for the current fiscal. This compares to the prior 
fiscal year balance of $26,838-462. This represents an increase of approximately 3.00% or $807,374. This is due in large part 
to the current year increase in operating grants of $607,300 which was made up of funds received for the Tyler field 
improvement grant of $162,427 and the housing rehabilitation grant of $190,434. In addition, property tax revenues increased 
by $550,643 due to both a higher annual commibnent and a higher then anticipated collection rate. . 

The cost of the To'WTI' s governmental activities was $26,580,705 for the current fiscal year. The amount of these costs ultimately 
financed by general revenues of the Town, however, was only $14,865,381 due to a portion of these costs being paid for by 
individuals receiving certain benefits through charges for services in the amount of $1,535,804 and'through operating and 
capital grants received from the State (state and federal dollars) in the amount of $10,179,520. Uris amounts to approximately 
55.93 % of the cost of these governmental activities actually being financed by the general revenues of the Town. This compares 
to approximately 57.25% of the cost of the governmental activities of the To'WTI being financed by the general revenues of the 
town for the prior fiscal year. The individual breakduwn of how these charges for services and operating and capital grants 
where received by deparbnent for the current fiscal year is sho1VIl on Statement B on page 11. 

The Board of Education and the related programs of the Tovvn received approximately $1,461,885 in grant dollars from a 
number of sources including State grant funds and Federal pass-through grant funds to assist in a number of educational 
programs and projects from the school lunch program to improving basic programs. TIris compares to appro:x:imately 
$1,447,816 in the prior fiscal year. The prior fiscal year balance excluded $780,040 in federal education stabilization funds 
received from the state as a supplement to education cost sharing funds. These revenue amounts represent the amounts 
recorded by the To'WTI in the fund financial statements. The amounts shown in the govemment--wide financial statements have 
been adjusted for unearned amounts which are recorded as deferred revenues on the Statement of net assets. 
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Using this annual report 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement 
of net assets and the Statement of activities which are shown on pages 10 and 11 and which provide information about the activities 
of the Town as a whole and presentalonger-view of the Town's finances. The fund financial statements consist of the Balance Sheet 
and the Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes infund balances which are shown on pages 12 and 14 and tell how the 
services of the Town were financed in the-short-term as well ~s what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also 
report the Town's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by providing information about the 
Town's most significant funds. Budget to actual information is reported in these fund financial statements for the general fund on 
pages 16 and 17. The statements on pages 18 and 19 provide financial information about the proprietary activities in the form of 
an internal service fund used to account for the self funding dental plan of the Town. -The statements on page 20· provide financial 
infmmation about the fiduciary activities for which the Town acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of groups outside of 
the Town. These statements relate to agency funds for which the Town is acting in a purely custodial capacity for student and other 
groups and for private purpose trust funds when amounts have been given to the Tovvn for specilic purposes. 

Reporting the Town as a whole 

Our analysis of the Town as a whole begins on page 10 with the Statement of net assets. One of the most important questions asked 
about the Town's finances is, "ls the Town as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the current fiscal years activities?" The 
statement of net assets and the statement of activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way 
that helps answer this question. The statement of net assets includes all of the non fiduciary assets and liabilities of the Town using 
the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is sirnilarto the accounting policies and procedure utilized by most private­
sector (for profit) companies. All of the current fiscal year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash 
is received or paid in the statement of activities. 

These two statements report the Town's net assets and the changes in these net assets. You can think of these net assets as one way 
to measure the financial health and financial position of the TOW11. The net asset balance:is made up of the difference between the 
assets and liabilities of the Town Over time, increases and decreases in the Tovvn's net assets are one :indicator of whether its 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, you also need to consider other non-financial factors which affect the 
overall financial health of the Town such as changes in the property tax base, the conditions of the infrastructure of the Town, and 
the general economy present at the time. These two statements are divided into governmental activities and the discretely presented 
component unit. The Town's activities are classified solely as governmental activities and are characterized as follows: 

Governmental activities - All of the To-wn's basic services are reported here, including general government public safety, public 
works, health recreation and social services, community preservation, education, and other unclassified programs and activities. 
Property taxes, charges for services, State and Federal operating and capital grants and other fundil;lg, and other miscellaneous 
revenues finance most of these activities in whole or in part 

Reporting the Town's most significant funds 

Our analysis of the T ovvn' s major funds begins on page 12 with the Balance sheet. The fund financial statements provide detailed 
information about the most significant funds of the Town but not a combined picture of the Town as a whole. Some of these funds 
are reqUired to be established by State law and by bond covenants. In addition, the Board of Finance of the Town has the authority 
to establish many other funds which it uses to help control and manage funds for particular purposes (such as the community center 
or recreation commission) or to show that it is meeting legal responSibilities for using certain taxes, grants, or other money (such 
as the grant revenue received and expended for educational grants). The To-wn uses governmental funds which are characterized 
as follows: 

Governinental funds - All of the Townfs basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows 
into and out of those funds and the balances left at fiscal year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported 
us:ing a current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted into cash. The governmental fund financial 
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Tovvn's general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent 
in the near future to finance the Tuwn's programs and activities. The relationship between governmental activities and 
governmental funds is presented in a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financials. 
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The Town as a trustee 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Management's DiscUssion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses onnetassets and changes:in netassets. Fiduciary funds are used by fue Town to report assets held 
:in a trustee or agency capacity for ofuer groups and fuerefore cannot be used to support the Tow'ds own programs. The type of 
fiduciary funds for which the Town is trustee are private purpose trust funds and agency funds. Private purpose trust funds 
account for the assets held by the Town:in a trustee capacity on behalf of the schools:in the form of scholarship funds and on behalf 
of fue library and cemeteries in similar funds. All of the resources of these funds, including any earnings on invested resources, 
may be used to support fueir activities. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital. Agency 
funds are used to report resources held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity such as student activity accounts. 

The Town as a whole - Assets, liabilities, and net assets 

The information provided below represents government-wide information for fue governmental activities of the To"WTl. for the 
current fiscal year compared to the prior fiscal year. The current ratio compares the current assets of fue To"WIl to its current 
liabilities and gives an indication of the Town's ability to pay current obligations. As of the end of the cUIrentfiscal year the current 
ratio of the Town was 1.04 to 1 compared to the end of the prior fiscal year when fue current ratio was 1.60 to 1. Another indication 
offue Town's ability to meet its current obligations with CUIrent assets is called its working capital. This is calculated by subtracting 
the current liabilities from the current assets. As of the end of the current fiscal year the Town's positive working capital balance 
was $339,633. This compares to the prior fiscal year positive balance of $2,015,906. The large decrease in fue current ratio and 
working capital amounts can be related to the activity in the Amston Lake sewer construction project fund. The current assets in 
this fund were $2,589,214 and the current liabilities were $5,797,509 due in large part to the $5,100,000 bond anticipation note 
entered into by the To""WTI. These amounts were not present in the prior fiscal year and will not affect current assets and current 
liabilities in this same manner in the upcoming fiscal year. Excluding fuese amounts from the above current ratio and working 
capital calculations result in a current ratio of 2.52 to 1 and a working capital balance of $3,547,928. 

Current assets 
Other assets 
Capital assets 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities outstanding 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Restricted net assets: 
Expendable: 

Restricted invesbnent funds 
Restricted donation funds 
Enabling legislation funds 
Educational activity and program funds 
Community development projects 

Non-expendable: 
Non-USDA :inventory 
Prepaid expenses 
Principal balance of permanent funds 

__ ---'G=oV'-e"'Illlll.ental Activities 

2012 

$ 8,465,228 
3,590,302 

39,317,813 
$ 51,373,343 

$ 8,125,595 
4,616,580 

$ 12,742,175 

$ 30,557,278 
3,440,596 
4,633,294 

$ 38,631,168 

$ 1,948,585 
280,167 

46,694 
148,124 
663,151 

3,086,721 

6,311 
25,294 

322,270 
353,875 

$ 3,440,596 
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2011 

$ 5,377,170 
3,475,399 

36,785,625 
$ 45,638,194 

$ 3,361,264 
4,710,893 

$ 8,072,157 

$ 32,474,524 
3,245,394 
1,846,119 

$ 37,566,037 

$ 1,850,212 
270,954 

43,698 
139,668 
585,971 

2,890,503 

7,353 
25,268 

322,270 
354,891 

$ 3,245,394 

Percentage 
of Total 

2012 2011 

16.48% 11.78% 
6.99% 7.62% 

76.53% 80.60% 
100.00% 100.00% 

63.77% 41.64% 
36.23% 58.36% 

100.00% 100.00% 

79.10% 86.45% 
8.91% 8.64% 

11.99% 4.91% 
100.00% 100.00% 



Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

The Town as a whole - Revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets 

The information provided below represents government-wide information for the governmental activities of the Town for the 
current fiscal year as compared to the prior fiscal year. The revenues and expenses shown below are recorded on the accrual basis 
of accounting. Program revenues received by the Town specifically relating to or generated by individual deparbnentsare applied 
to the deparbnental expendirnres to determine the amount and percentage of total Town expenditures acrnally :ffuanced by the 
general revenues of the Town. This amount and percentage is sh~wn at the bottom of this schedule and should be used to give the 
reader an indication of how the Town's activities were financed during the current fiscal year in comparison to the prior fiscal year. 
The comparison of expenses shown below indicates that the general make-up of the Town's spending by department as a percentage 
of total spending was consistent for the current fiscal year- in comparison to the prior fiscal year. 

Program revenues 
Charges for services 
Operating grants 
Capital grants 

General revenues 
Property taxes, interest, and liens 
State property tax relief revenues 
Other unclassified state revenues 
Net change in the fair value 'of invesbnents 
Interest and dividends 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenses 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health & social 
Community preservation 
Education 
Education - on behalf 
Unclassified and program 
Capital outlay 
Depreciation 
Debt service: 
Interest 

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 
Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - July 1 

Net assets - June 30 

Expenses financed by general revenues: 
Total expenses 
Less charges for services 
Less ope~ating grants and contributions 
Less capital grants and contributions 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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Governmental Activities 

2012 

1,535,804 
9,489,379 

690,141 

15,208,921 
64,046 

98,963 
90,724 

467,858 
27,645,836 

860,988 
50M31 

1,096,271 
981,193 
242,715 

19,898,087 
1,680,491 

699,056 

459,411 

155,662 

26,580,705 

1,065,131 

37,566,037 

38,631,168 

26,580,705 
-1,535,804 
-9,489,379 

-690,141 
14,865,381 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2011 

1,869,542 
8,882,079 

551,542 

14,658,278 
90,925 

409,236 
74,768 

302,092 
26,838,462 

817,932 
494,307 

1,213,025 
717,365 
193,426 

20,441,131 
1,360,318 

518,898 

431,963 

190,837 
63,221 

26,442,423 

396,039 

37,169,998 

37,566,037 

26,442,423 
-1,869,542 
-8,882,079 

-551,542 
15,139,260 

Percentage 
oITota! 

2012 2011 

5.56% 6.97% 
34.32% 33.09% 
2.50% 2.06%· 

55.01% 54.62% 
0.23% 0.34% 

0.36% 1.53% 
0.33% 0.28% 
1.69% 1.11% 

100.00% 100.00% 

3.24% 3.09% 
1.91% 1.87% 
4.12% 459% 
3.69% 2.71% 
0.91% 0.73% 

74.86% 77.30% 
6.32% 5.14% 
2.63% 1.97% 

1.73% 1.63% 

0.59% 0.73% 
0.24% 

100.00% 100.00% 

55.93% 57.25% 



Capital assets 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June30,2012 

'The capital assets of the Town include land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, equipment, and 
infrastructure assets that are used in the operations of the Town and that have an initial useful life extending beyond a single fiscal 
year. Infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that are normally stationary in nature and can normally be preserved for 
a significantly greater number of years than most capital assets. The types of infrastructure assets recorded by the ToVVIl include 
but are not limited to improved town roads, unimproved town roads, and bridge~. The infrastructure assets shown below include 
the current and prior fiscal year expenses of the Town for improvements to roads within the Town recorded at their actual historical 
cost or estimated historical cost when the actual costs were not available. More detailed information on the capital assets of the 
Town can be found in note lL on page 26 and note 5 on page 33. 

Land and improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 
Total historical value 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets (net) 

Debt administration 

$ 

$ 

Governmental Activities 

2012 

2,121,289 
35,784,311 

3,724,563 
868,738 

26,636,485 
3,247,516 

72,382,902 

-33,065,089 

39,317,813 

$ 

$ 

2011 

1,896,289 
35,767,406 

3,600,939 
720,208 

25,802,849 
564,655 

68,352,346 

-3M15,812 

36,736,534 

Percentage 
oftota! 

2012 

2.93% 
49.44% 

5.15% 
1.20% 

36.80% 
4.48% 

100.00% 

2011 

2.77% 
52.33% 

5.27% 
1.05% 

37.75% 
0.83% 

100.00% 

The debt of the town includes long-term bonds, notes and capital leases payable, accrued compensated absences (accumulated 
vacation and sick time) and accrued landfill post-closure care costs. In addition, during the current fiscal year the tOVVIl entered into 
a short-term bond anticipation note agreement in the amountof$5,100,000. This short-term debtis beingsho'WIl below individually 
and will be incorporated into the long-term debt amounts during the next fiscal year when it is replaces with a long-term bond 
payable. All long-term debt is incurred through the approval of the inhabitants of the Town in accordance with applicable state 
statutes. The comparison of the outstanding debt shown below indicates that the general make-up of the Town's different types 
of debt as a percentage of total debt was consistent for the current fiscal year in comparison to the prior fiscal year. The portion due 
within one year for bonds and notes payable decreased by approximately 34.27% as a result of the variations between payment 
schedules and more specifically due to one of the outstanding bonds which was fully paid off during the current fiscal year for 
which the current portion due in the prior fiscal year was $225,000 and for which there is no longer a current portion due. This 
decrease is simply based on the bonds amortization payment schedule. The portion due after one year decreased by approximately 
11.71 % as a result of the annual payments made on the individual bonds and notes payable. More detailed information on the debt 
of the Town can be found in note 6 and 7 starting on page 34. 

Bond anticipation note payable 
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable: 
Portion due within one year 
Portion due after one year 

Accrued compensated absences - school 
Accrued compensated absences - town 
Accrued landfill post-closure costs 

Tota! debt 

$ 

$ 

Governmental Activities 

2012 2011 

5,100,000 $ 

427,618 650,566 
3,232,917 3,660,535 

66,321 67,122 
28,311 29,705 
89,131 100,631 

8,944,298 $ 4,508,559 
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Percentage 
oftota! 

2012 2011 

57.02% 

4.79% 
36.15% 

0.74% 
0.32% 
0.98% 

100.00% 

14.43% 
81.19% 
1.42% 
0.66% 
2.30% 

100.00% 



Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Managements Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

The previous sections of this management discussion and analysis have been presented for the current fiscal year with a focus on 
the comparative analysis of the information on the governmental activities of the Town as found ill the government-wide financial 
statements. Comparative financial information has not been included for the fund financial statements of the Town. The following 
financial highlights, however, do relate to the balances and results of the activities of the Town's individual funds as found :in its 
fund financial statements. Detailed current year information on the Town's individual funds can be found on the Balance sheet 
on page 12 and the Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances on page 14. 

Financial highlights - Fund financial statements 

The total assets of the Town's governmental funds exceeded the total liabilities by $9,044,112 which represents the fund balance 
of these funds as of the end of the current fiscal year. This compares to the prior fiscal year when total assets exceeded total 
liabilities by $5,813,182 as restated, a favorable :increase of approximately 55.58 % or $3,230,930. This favorable increase is due 
mostly to the net results of the town construction projects fund which were a positive $2,272,564 and was the result of the 
unexpended portion of the bond anticipation note received m the amount of $5,100,000. In addition, the net results of the 
town's general fund were a positive $739,624. These mcreases and other fund changes can be seen by reviewmg Statement D 
on page 14 and the corresponding combming schedules and sub-schedules as shovro in the table of contents. 

The total revenues of the Town's governmental funds were $27,561,084 for the current fiscal year in comparison to $27,163,235 
in the prior fiscal year. 1bis represents an mcrease of approximately 1.46% or $397,849. 1bis is due in large partto the current 
year change in property taxes, interest and liens revenue which was a positive :increase in the amount of $460,210. This increase 
was due to both a higher annual commitment and a higher then anticipated collection rate. In addition, the state on-behalf 
revenue current year change was a positive $320,173 which was the result of the states on-behalf percentage rate increasing 
from 15.90% to 2054%. 

The total expenditures of the Town's governmental funds were $29,430,154 for the current fiscal year in comparison to 
$27,504,313 as restated in the p:dor fiscal year. This represents an increase of approximately 7.00% or $1,925,841. TIris increase 
is made up a number of mcreases and decrease within the funds of the Town. The tovro construction fund increased its 
expenditures by $2,477,570 due to the on going work on the Amston Lake sewer construction project. The non-major capital 
project fund decreased its expenditures by $347,299 due in part to the completion of the DOT fix it first grant In addition, the 
general fund education expenditures decreased by $312,827 as a result of the budget needing to be :increased in the prior fiscal 
year by $365,821 due to unforseen and unfunded expenditures which was not necessary during the current fiscal year. 

The net change in fund balance (excess or deficiency of revenues over-under expenditures) for the Town's general fund was 
a positive $739,624 for the current fiscal year in comparison to a negative $707,056 as restated for the prior fiscal year. Thls 
represents a favorable increase of over 200 % and relates in part to the following selected budgetary highlights from the current 
and prior fiscal year. 

The actual revenues received in the Town's general fund were $43,988 higher than the budget revenues for the current fiscal 
year which is a favorable variance in comparison to $4,684 lower for the prior fiscal year which was an unfavorable variance. 
During the current fiscal year the actual school tuition revenue received was $138,903 lower than the budgeted amount in 
comparison to $37,194 lower for the prior fiscal year. The actual revenue amounts received from the State for education cost 
sharing and other related revenues were $57,238 higher than the budgeted amount in comparison to $61,037 lower for the prior 
fiscal year. In addition, during the current fiscal year the amount recorded for :intergovernmental other revenues was $51,482 
higher than the budgeted amount in comparison to $43,751 lower for the prior fiscal year. , 

The actual program expenditures in the Tovro's general fund were $430,613 lower than the adjusted budgeted expenditures 
for the current fiscal year which is a favorable variance in comparison to $241,714 lower as restated than the budgeted 
expenditures for the prior fiscal year which was also a favorable variance. This current fiscal year under expenditure can be 
attributed in large part to the board of education which was $240,230 under the adjusted budget, the police services account 
which was $22,880 under the origmal budget, the snow removal account line item which was $55,612 under the original budget 
and the solid waste facility account which was $33,778 under the original budget 

In the CUTrent fiscal year, the inhabitants of the To"WIl approved the use of $485,000 of its unassigned general fund balance as 
appropriations to be transferred as a loan to the Amston Lake sewer construction project in the amount of $350,000 and for a 
portion of the purchase 'of the synagogue road property in the amount of $135,000. This in effect is the same as budgeting for 
a loss due to the fact that prior year accumulated balances cannot be shown as current year revenues. In the prior fiscal year, 
the inhabitants of the Town approved the use of $985,821 of its unassigned fund balance in this same manner for a nrunber of 
different items. 
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Discretely presented 1/ component unit" 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2012 

The financial reporting enti-ry- consists of the primary government and its component units, organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government 
are such- that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. All funds, 
organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not legally separate are, for financial reporting purposes, part 
of the primary government Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the 
organization's governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization 
to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government The primary government 
may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government regardless of whether the 
organization has (1) a separately elected governing board, (2) a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or (3) 
a jointly appointed board. 

The Town has determined. that the Lebanon Volunteer Fire Department meets the definition of a component unit due to its fiscal 
dependence on the Town and the nature and significance of their relationship. For a legally separate entity to be considered fiscally 
independent it must, among other things, have the authority to determine its budget without the primary government having the 
authority to approve and modify that budget. The Town approves a certain amount of money on an annual basis to be appropriated 
to the Department to fund a portion of its operations. Durmg. the current fiscal year this amount was appropriated for the fire 
fighting operations of the Department Although this amount was labeled as being appropriated for the fire fighting operations 
of the Department, once the amount has been received it may be physically used for any purpose fue Department deems necessary 
for its operations as a whole. Though the Town does not directly have the authority to approve or modify the .budget of the 
Department, it does indirectly do this by deciding the amount fuat it will or will not appropriate on an annual basis. In addition, 
the fire safety complex, fire trucks and ambulances used by the Department are purchased by the T01Nn. This also creates a level 
of fiscal dependence due to the fact that the Deparbnent could not function in its current capacity without this assistance. In 
addition to the level of fiscal dependence between the Town and the Department, the nature and significance of the relationship 
with the primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. This component unit has been treated as a discretely presented component unit in accordance with the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 14 as amended by Statement Nos. 39 and 61. The financial information of the Department has been included 
in the government-wide statement of net assets and statement of activities. 

Economic factors and next year's budgets and rates 

The Town believes it has steadily maintained a sufficient unrestricted net asset and unassigned fund balance to susta:in the 
governmental activities and operations for an estimated two month period of time. The Town sees this trend continuing through 
fuhlre fiscal years. There are no currently known facts, decisions or conditions that the Town believes will significantly effect the 
financial position or results of the operations of the Tovvn in the future. 

Contacting the Town's financial management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances, comply wifu finance-related laws and 
regulations, and demonstrate the Town's commitmentto public accountability. If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the Town Finance Department at 579 Exeter Road, Lebanon, Connecticut 06249. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Statement of net assets 

Tune 30, 2012 

GovernmentaI-
activities 

Assets: 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 3,625,866 
Invesbnents 4,120,641 
Accounts receivable 675,270 
Tax acquired property 6,428 
Inventories 11,729 
Prepaid items 25,294 
Total current assets 8,465,228 

Capital assets 
Non-depreciable 5,368,805 
Depreciable (net) 33,949,008 
Total capital assets 39,317,813 

Other assets 
Restricted cash 574,852 
Restricted invesbnents 2,271,200 
Long-term accounts receivable 105,047 
Notes receivable 639,203 
Total other assets 3,590,302 

Total Assets $ 51,373,343 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 1,367,222 
Accrued hourly payroll 103,219 
Accrued summer salaries 942,904 
Other liabilities 72,972 
Deferred revenues 111,660 
Short-term debt 5,100,000 
Long-term debt 
Portion due withffi one year 427,618 
Portion due after one year 3,232,917 

Accrued compensated absences 94,632 
Accrued landfill post closure care cost 89,131 
Other post-employment benefit liability 1,199,900 
T otalliabilities 12,742,175 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 30,557,278 
Restricted 
Expendable 3,086,721 
Non-expendable 353,875 

Unrestricted 4,633,294 
Total net assets 38,631,168 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 51,373,343 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Statement A 

Component 
unit 

$ 124,839 
437,377 

89 

562,305 

185,031 
185,031 

$ 747,336 

$ 54,516 
2,675 

57,191 

185,031 

505,114 
690,145 

$ 747,336 



Primary government: Expenses 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ -860,988 
Public safety -506,831 
Public works -1,096,271 
Health & social -981,193 
Community preservation -242,715 
Education -19,898,087 
Education - on behalf . -1,680,491 
Unclassified and program -699,056 
Capital outlay 
Depreciation 
General infrastructure -459,411 

Debt service 
Interest -155,662 

$ -26,580,705 

Component unit 
Volunteer fire department $ -333,683 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Statement of activities 

For the year ended June 3D, 2012 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for grants and grants and 
services contributions contributions 

$ 73,417 $ 29,701 $ 
124,243 73,164 
117,738 154,179 

71,157 228,476 
12,124 98,079 

1,134,725 6,901,582 
1,680,491 

2,400 323,707 
690,141 

$ 1,535,804 $ 9,489,379 $ 690,141 

$ 174,322 $ 135,077 $ 

General revenues: 
Property tax revenues, interest, and liens 
State property tax relief revenues 
Other unclassified state revenues 
Net change in fair value of investments 
Interest and dividends 
:Miscellaneous 
Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - July 1 

Prior period adjustment 

Net assets - July 1 - restated 

Net assets - June 30 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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StatementB 

Net (expenses) revenues and 
changes in net assets 

Primary 
governmental Component 

activities unit 

$ -757,870 $ 
-309,424 
-824,354 
-681,560 
-132,512 

-11,86i,780 

-372,949 
690,141 

-459,411 

-155,662 

-14,865,381 

-24,284 

15,208,921 
64,046 

98,963 
90,724 5,674 

467,858 23,980 
15,930,512 29,654 

1,065,131 5,370 

38,632,835 494,027 

-1,066,798 190,748 

37,566,037 684,775 

$ 38,631,168 $ 690,145 



Assets 

Cash $ 
Invesbnents 
Receivables (net of allowance) 
Property taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Other 

Notes receivable 
Tax acquired property 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Due from other funds 
Total assets $ 

Liabilities and fund balances 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 
Accrued hourly payroll 
Accrued summer salaries 
Other liabilities 
Deferred property tax revenues 
Deferred other revenues 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Balance sheet - Governmental funds 

lune 30, 2012 

Town Capital & Trumbull 
General construction nonrecurring investments 

fund projects fund fund 

1,221,639 $ 2,589,214 $ $ 
4,120,641 1,948,585 

469,313 
88,279 
1,568 19,199 

6,428 

25,294 
870,398 =,191 792,425 

6,803,560 $ 2,811,405 $ 811,624 $ 1,948,585 

617,392 $ 697,509 $ 10,615 $ 
87,319 

939,421 
67,447 

392,906 
21,186 

1,864,276 587,126 
3,989,947 1,284,635 10,615 

25,294 
1,948,585 

2,113,896 801,009 

2,788,319 -587,126 
2,813,613 1,526,770 801,009 1,948,585 

6,803,560 $ 2,811,405 $ 811,624 $ 1,948,585 

See the accompanying notes'to the basic financial statements. 
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StatementC 

Non-major 
governmental 

funds Totals 

$ 389,865 $ 4,200,718 
322,615 6,391,841 

5,962 475,275 
75,116 163,395 
15,833 36,600 

639,203 639,203 
6,428 

11,729 11,729 
25,294 

851,312 2,736,326 
$ 2,311,635 $ 14,686,809 

$ 41,706 $ 1,367,= 
15,900 103,219 
3,483 942,904 
5,525 72,972 

392,906 
5,962 27,148 

284,924 2,736,326 
357,500 5,642,697 

328,581 353,875 
1,224,403 3,172,988 

412,106 3,327,011 
75,377 75,377 

-86,332 2,114,861 
1,954,135 9,044,112 

$ 2,311,635 $ 14,686,809 



Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Reconciliation of Statement C to Statement A 

for all governmental funds and activities 
June 30, 2012 

Fund balances of governmental funds as shown on Statement C 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements 
(Statement A) are different then the amounts reported in the fund financi~ statements 
(Statement C) and must therefore be modified as follows: 

1 Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are 
not reported on Statement C however they are reported on Statement A and therefore must 
be added back in: 

Cost. 
Less accumulated depreciation 

2 The majority of the property tax receivable long-term asset is not available to pay for current 
period expenditures and therefore it is reported as deferred revenue on Statement C 
however this amount is considered earned when billed and in tum recorded as revenue on 
Statement A and therefore must be added back in: 

3 Certain state and federal grant revenues received by the Town are recorded as revenue 
when the amounts are available and measurable in accordance with the modified aq:rual 
basis of accounting. In addition, Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards section 1600.114 states that in regard to the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, material revenues received prior to the normal time of receipt should be 
recorded as deferred revenue, The Town defers all revenues that are received prior to their 
normal period of receipt The govemment--wide financial statements record revenues on the 
accrual basis of accounting when they have been earned and therefore these revenue 
amounts are deferred on Statement A and therefore must be subtracted out: 

4 Inter fund receivable and payable balances between governmental funds are reported on 
Statement C but eliminated on the Statement A: 

Inter fund receivables 
Inter fund payables 

5 Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported on Statement C however they are reported on Statement A and must therefore be 
subtracted out: 

Other post-employment benefits liability 
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable 
Bond anticipation notes payable 
Accrued compensated balances 
Estimated liability for post closure landfill care 

6 Delinquent interest and lien fees are recorded as revenue when received and when they 
become available and measurable however these amounts are recorded on Statement A due 
to the fact that the amounts are viewed to have been earned and therefore they must be 
added back in: 

Net assets of governmental activities as shown on Statement A 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 9,044)12 

72,382,902 
-33,065,089 39,317,813 

392,906 

-84,512 

2,736,326 
-2,736,326 

-1,199,900 
-3,660,535 
-5,100,000 

-9M32 
-89,131 -10,144,198 

105,047 

$ 38,631,168 



Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - Governmental funds 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Town Capital & Trumbull Non-major, 
General construction nonrecurring invesbnent governmental 

fund Erojects fund funds funds 
Revenues 
Property taxes, interest, and liens $ 14,797,966 $ $ $ $ 373,658 
Int~rgovernmenta1 - education 5,775,780 1,080,213 
Intergovernmental- on behalf 1,680,491 
Intergovernmental - tax relief 64,046 
Intergovernmental - other 244,192 381,672 306,121 596,261 
Tuition 887,848 
Charges for services 320,577 18,530 327,379 
Net change in investment fair value 98,823 140 
Interest and dividends 13,387 9,435 66,841 1,061 
:Miscellaneous 59,468 29,786 20,025 407,384 
Total revenues 23,843,755 439,423 326,146 165,664 2,786,096 

Expendimres 
Current 
General government 801,686 2,750 47,806 
Public safety 329,301 31,686 
Public works 981,449 6,775 43,261 
Health & social 167,067 749,487 
Community preservation 138,502 15,029 ' 89,184 
Education 17,274,123 4,698 21,566 1,452,800 
Education - on behalf 1,680,491 
Unclassified and program 451,440 4,045 195 241,916 

Capital outlay 2,862,161 ' 993,851 244,828 
Debt service: 
Principle 638,395 
Interest 155,662 

Total expenditures 22,618,116 2,866,859 1,044,016 195 2,900,968 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 1,225,639 -2,427,436 -717,870 165,469 -114,872 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Debt issuance proceeds 5,100,000 
Transfers in 750,067 350,000 749,400 213,904 
Transfers out -1,236,082 -750,000 -10,000 -67,096 -193 

Total other financing sources (uses) -486,015 4,700,000 739,400 -67,096 213,711 

Net change in fund balance 739,624 2,272,564 21,530 98,373 98,839 

Fund balances - July 1 3,144,590 -745,794 779,479 1,850,201 1,855,296 

Prior period adjustment -1,070,601 

Fund balances - July 1- restated 2,073,989 -745,794 779,479 1,850,212 1,855,296 

Fund balances - June 30 $ 2,813,613 $ 1,526,770 $ 801,009 $ 1,948,585 $ 1,954,135 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Statement D 

Totals 

$ 15,171,624 
6,855,993 
1,680,491 

64,046 
1,528,246 

887,848 
666,486 

98,963 
90,724 

516,663 
27,561,084 

852,242 
360,987 

1,031,485 
916,554 
242,715 

18,753,187 
1,680,491 

697,596 
4,100,840 

638,395 
155,662 

29,430,154 

-1,869,070 

5,100,000 
2,063,371 

-2,063,371 
5,100,000 

3,230,930 

6,883,783 

-1,070,601 

5,813,182 

$ 9,044,112 



Town of Lebanonr Connecticut 
Reconciliation of Statement D to Statement B 

for all governmental funds and activities 
lune 30, 2012 

Net changes:in governmental fund balances as shown on Statement D 

Amounts'recorded for governmental activities:in the government-wide financial statements 
(Statement B) are different then the amounts reported in the fund financial 'statements 
(Statement D) and therefore must be modified as follows: 

1 Capital asset purchases are recorded as expenditures in Statement D and are capitalized and 
shown as depreciation expense over there estimated useful lives in Statement B. Therefore 
the following adjustments must be made: 

Current year capital asset purchases to be capitalized 
Curr~ntyear depreciation expense on current and previous capital assets 

2 Property tax revenues are recognized on Statement D as described in note IH of the notes 
to the financial statements however property tax revenues are recorded in the full amount 
of the annual levy in Statement B and therefore the CUIrent year adjustment described in 
note IH must be added back in or subtracted back out 

3 The basis of presentation and revenue recognition is different from the government-wide 
financial statements shown on Statement B and the fund financial statements shown on 
Statement D. This difference in revenue recognition policies results in certain revenue 
amount being recorded in Statement B and deferred in Statement D. 

Prior year deferred revenue amounts to be recognized 
Current year revenue amounts to be deferred 

4 Inter fund transfers between governmental funds are reported on Statement D but must be 
eliminated on Statement B: 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

5 Payments on and changes in long-term liabilities are recorded as current year activities on 
Statement D however they are shown as a reduction in an already, established liability 
account on in the government-wide financial statements and therefore must not be shown 
as current year activity: 

Other post-employment benefits liability 
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable 
Bond anticipation notes proceeds 
Accrued compensated balances 
Estimated liability for post closure landfill care 

6 EstOnated accounts receivable for delinquent interest and lien fees are recorded as revenue 
when received on Statement D and as a reduction in a recorded receivable on the 
government-wide financial statements and therefore must not be shown as current year 
activity: 

Prior year recorded delinquent interest and lien receivable balance 
Current year recorded delinquent interest and lien receivable balance 

Change in net assets of governmental activities as shown on Statement B 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 3,230,930 

4,100,840 
-1,568,652 2,532,188 

29,394 

131,967 
-84,512 47,455 

2,063,371 
-2,063,371 

-347,000 
650,566 

-5,100,000 
2,195 

11,500 -4,782,739 

-97,144 
105,047 7,903 

$ 1,065,131 



StatementE 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Statem~nt of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance 
Budget and actual (Budgetary basis) - General fund 

For theyear ended June 30, 2012 

Original Budget Final 
budget revisions budget Actual Variance 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues, interest and liens $ 15,152,298 $ $ 15,152,298 $ 15,162,147 $ 9,849 
Intergovernmental- education 5,718,542 5,718,542 5,775,780 ·57,238 
Intergovernmental- tax relief 66,208 66,208 64,046 -2,162 
Int~governmental- other 192,710 192,710 244,192 51,482 
Tuition 1,026,751 1,026,751 887,848 -138,903 
Charges for services 240,500 240,500 320,577 80,077 
Interest and dividends 24,000 24,000 1:),387 -10,613 
Miscellaneous 62,448 62,448 59,468 -2,980 
Total revenues 22,483,457 22,483,457 22,527,445 43,988 

Expenditures 
General government: 

Legal counsel 25,000 13,215 38,215 38,214 1 
Selectmen 115,992 616 116,608 116,609 -1 
Elections 30,447 3,597 34,044 34,044 
Probate court 2,479 2,479 2,479 
Board of finance 2,000 2,000 1,423 577 
Finance office 116,247 116,247 106,341 9,906 
Tax collector 64,860 23,588 88,448 88,247 201 
Board of appeals 1,000 1,000 787 213 
Town clerk 87,264 87,264 87,245 19 
Assessor 67,804 67,804 58,201 9,603 
Auditor 12,350 12,350 12,350 
Town report 1,200 1,200 900 300 
Computer service 76,256 76,256 73,080 3,176 
Town hall 53,550 53,550 35,422 18,128 
Insurance 146,720 146,720 146,344 376 

803,169 41,016 844,185 801,686 42,499 
Public safely: 
Police services 190,000 190,000 167,120 22,880 
Lebanon volunteer fire deparbnent 91,350 91,350 91,350 
Fire marshall 16,371 16,371 15,311 1,060 
Burning official 2,335 750 3,085 2,949 136 
Building department 21,122 283 21,405 21,404 1 
Fire safety complex 31,100 31,100 31,117 -17 
Tree warden 175 175 50 125 

352,453 1,033 353,486 329,301 24,185 . 
Public works: 

Department of public works 627,786 627,786 624,620 3,166 
Buildings and grounds 102,048 102,048 86,553 15,495 
Snow removal 150,000 150,000 94,388 55,612 
Street lights 1,000 1,160 2,160 2,160 
Solid waste facility 190,000 190,000 156,222 33,778 
Cemetery commission 12,687 12,687 12,190 497 
Water pollution control 12,704 12,704 5,316 7,388 

1,096,225 1,160 1,097,385 981,449 115,936 
Health & social: 

Health department 15,515 686 16,201 16,202 -1 
Vna 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Human services 18,269 18,269 16,098 2,171 
Wcmh Paramedic program 29,032 2,529 31,561 31,561 

See the accompanying notes to the basic·financial statements. 
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Statement E (continued) 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Statement of revenues/ expenditures, and changes in fund balance 
Budget and actual (Budgetary basis) - General fund 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Original Budget Final 
budget revisions budget Actual Variance 

Health & sodal (continued): 
United services $ 4,835 $ $ 4,835 $ 4,835 $ 
Switch board 45,734 45,734 45,734 
Special events 1,000 1,000 1,188 -188 
Senior center operations 53,907 53,907 50,449 3,458 

169,292 3,215 172,507 167,067 " 5,440 
Cornmu~ty preservation: 
Planning and zoning 133,670 133,670 130,328 3,342 
Zoning board of appeals 4,760 4,760 4,871 -111 
Economic development commission 2,030 2,030 1,088 942 
Flood and erosion 2,000 2,000 1,974 26 
Conservation committee 250 250 241 9 

142,710 142,710 138,502 4,208 

Education 17,514,353 17,514,353 17,274,123 240,230 

Unclassified and program: 
Social security 92,503 92,503 86,240 6,263 
Medical life insurance 233,253 233,253 243,121 -9,868 
Pension plan 102,061 2,847 104,908 119,185 -14,277 
Unemployment compensation 15,000 15,000 2,894 12,106 
Contingency 120,000 -116,109 3,891 3,891 

562,817 -113,262 449,555 451,440 -1,885 
Debt service: 
Principal 638,395 638,395 638,395 
Interest 155,662 155,662 155,662 

794,057 794,057 794,057 

Total expenditures 21,435,076 -66,838 21,368,238 20,937,625 430,613 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 1,048,381 66,838 1,115,219 1,589,820 474,601 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Utilization of unassigned fund balance 
Temporary inter fund loan - see !lote 4B 350,000 350,000 -350,000 
Operating and budgetary transfers 135,000 135,000 -135,000 

Transfers in 750,067 750,067 
Transfers out -1,048,381 -551,838 -1,600,219 -1,600,263 -44 

Total other financing sources (uses) -1,048,381 -66,838 -1,115,219 -850,196 265,023 

Net change in fund balance 739,624 739,624 

Non-budgeted State on behalf revenue 1,680,491 
Non-budgeted State on behalf expenditure -1,680,491 

Fund Balance - July 1 3,144,590 

Prior period adjustment -1,070,601 

Fund balances - July 1- restated 2,073,989 

Fund Balance - June 30 $ 2,813,613 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Statement of net assets and Statement of revenues, expenses 

and changes in net assets - Proprietary funds 
As of and for the year ended Jnne 30, 2012 

Internal 
service 
fnnd-

Dentalfnnd 

Assets: 
Cash $ 14,984 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 
Total assets $ 14,984 

Liabilities and Net Assets: 
Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 6,515 
Other liabilities 500 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 7,015 

Net Assets 
Restricted 
Expendable 
Non-expendable 

Unrestricted 7,969 
Total net assets 7,969 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 14,984 

Operating revenues 
Contributions $ 198,490 
Interest and dividends 
Other revenues 
Total additions 198,490 

Operating expense 
Dental benefits 190,521 
Other expenses 
Total deductions 190,521 

Change in net assets 7,969 

Net assets - July 1 

Net assets - June 30 $ 7,969 

See the accompanying notes to :the basic financial statements. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecti.cut 
Statement of cash flows 

Proprietary funds 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from employees and employer 
Cash paid to vendors 
Other items 
Net cash provided by (used in) operations 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfers from other funds 
Transfers to other funds 
Other items 
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Invesiment income 
Other items 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1 

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided by (used) in operating activities: 
Ganges in operating assets and liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Statement of fiduciary net assets and Statement of changes 

in fiduciary net assets - Fiduciary funds 
As of and for the yeiiT ended June 30, 2012 

Private 
purpose Agency 

trusts funds 
Assets: 
Cash $ 12,204 $ 88,207 
Investments 70,673 25,558 
Accounts and other receivables 
Invento~ies and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 
Total assets $ 82,877 $ 113,765 

Liabilities and Net Assets: 
Lia biliiies 

Accounts payable $ $ 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Due to strident groups 97,442 
Due to other groups 16,323 
Totalliabiliiies 113,765 

Net Assets 
Restricted 
Expendable 82,877 
Non-expendable 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 82,877 

T otalliabilities and net assets $ 82;877 $ 113,765 

Additions 
Property tax revenues $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 413 
Net change in investment fair value 
Miscellaneous 
Total additions 413 

Deductions 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 1,728 
Capital expenditures 
Total deductions 1,728 

Change in net assets -1,315 

Net assets - July 1 84,192 

Net assets - June 30 $ 82,877 $ 

See the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

lune 30, 2012 

The Town of Lebanonr Connecticut (the Town) is located in the central section of Connecticut. The Town is a municipal corporation 
which is governed by an elected Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance. 

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity-with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
governmental accounting and financial reporting. Private sector standards of accounting and ~cj.al reporting issued prior to 
November 30, 1989, generaJ)y are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards do nut 
confIictwith or contradict pronouncements of the GASB. Governments also have the option offollowing subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-ty-pe activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Town, however, does not 
currently have any business-type activities or enterprise funds. The basic financial statements of the Town consist of government­
wide financial statements and fund financial statements. The basis of presentation, measurement focus, and basis of accounting 
differ for these two types of financial statements and are described separately in Section Band C below. The other following sections 
represent a summary of the significant accounting policies as applied by the Town. 

A Reporting entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and its component units, organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government 
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity! s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. All funds, 
organizationsr institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not legally separate are, for financial reporting purposes, part 
of the primary government. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority- of the 
organization's governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization 
to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. The primary government 
may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government regardless of whether the 
organization has (1) a separately elected governing board, (2) a governing board appointed by a higher level of government, or (3) 
a jointly appointed board. 

The Town has determined that the Lebanon Volunteer Fire Department meets the definition of a component unit due to its fiscal 
dependence on the Town and the nature and significance of their relationship. For a legally separate entity to be considered fiscally 
independent it must, among other things, have the authority to determine its budget without the primary government having the 
authority- to approve and modify that budget. The Town approves a certain amount of money onan annual basis to beappropriated 
to the Department to fund a portion of its operations. During the current fiscal year this amount was appropriated for the fire 
fighting operations of the Department. Although this amount was labeled as being appropriated for the fire fighting operations 
of the Department, once the amount has been received it may be physically used for any purpose the Department deems necessary 
for its operations as a whole. Though the Town does not directly have the authority to approve or modify the budget of the 
Department, it does indirectly do this by deciding the amount that it will or will not appropriate on an annual basis. In addition, 
the fire safety complex, fire trucks and ambulances used by the Department are purchased by the Town. This also creates a level 
of fiscal dependence Clue to the fact that the Department could Rot function in its current capacity without this assistance. In 
addition to the level of fiscal dependence betvveen the Town and the Deparbnent, the nature and significance of the relationship 
with the primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. This component unit has been treated as a discretely presented component unit in accordance with the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 14 as amended by Statement Nos. 39 and 61. The financial information of the Department has been included 
in the government-wide statement of net assets and statemen~ of activities. 

The Department also provides ambulance services for which it receives ambulance billing revenue. This revenue is classified as 
U charges for services" revenue in the financial statements. This revenue is used by the Department to fund its ambulance services. 
A portion of this ambulance billing revenue is associated with ALS services for which the Town presently has an agreement with 
and pays Windham Hospital Paramedics. The Department is of the belief that the portion of their ambulance billing revenue that 
relates to these ALS services should be returned to the Town. The Department returned $19,199 to the Town during the current 
fiscal year. This amount is shown as a miscellaneous revenue item within the capital and non-recurring major fund of the Town 
and as an expenditure within discretely presented component unit. The Department also receives memorial and trust funds as 
designated by the individual donor. These funds are shown as part of the general operating fund of the Department as part of the 
discretely presented component unit. The Hinckley and Bender memorial funds have been internally designated by the Department 
to be used for items associated with the fire safety complex addition. The memorial fund trust is _to be used for memorial type 
activities. 
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B. Government·wide financial statements 

1. Basis of presentation 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

June 30, 2012 

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement bf activities. Theses statements report 
information about the Town as a whole without displaying individual funds or fund types. These statements distinguish between 
the primary government and the discretely presented component unit as well as the governmental and business-type activities of 
the Town. These statements do not include information about the fiduciary activities and funds of the Town or component units 
which are fiduciary in nature. Fiduciary activities and funds report assets which are held by the Town in a trustee or agency 
capacity and which cannot be used to support the activities and programs of the ToVVll.. 

The statement of net assets presents the financial pOSition of the governmental and business-type activities of the primary 
government of the T OVVll. and the discretely presented component unit at the end of the fiscal year. This statement reports the assets, 
liabilities, and net assets of the Town. The assets and liabilities are presented in the order of their relative liquidity. The liquidity 
of assets is determined by how readily they are expected to be converted into cash and whether there are restrictions in place 
limiting their use by the ToVVll.. The liquidity of liabilities is determined by their mahuity or by when cash will be used to liquidate 
them. The net asset balance of the Town consists of the invested in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 
the total outstanding debt incurred to purchase the assets), restricted and unrestricted amounts. Restricted net assets are present 
when constralnts are imposed externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, other governments, or by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net assets consist of all net assets balances not meeting the definition of invested 
in capital assets or restricted. Internal balances between individual funds within the governmental and business-type activities are 
eliminated in this statementto minimize the" grossing-up" of assets and liabilities. These internal balances are also known as inter­
fund receivables and payables and are shown in the fund financial statements as due to and due from other funds. Any residual 
amounts due between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town would be shown as an internal balance and 
disclosed separately. 

The statement of activities presents the operations of the governmental and business type activities of the primary government of 
the Town and the discretely presented component unit of the Town for the fiscal year. The operations of the Town are shown in 
a format which reports the net (expense) revenue of the individual functions of the Town. The purpose of this.net (expense) revenue 
format is to report the relative financial burden of each of the Town's functions on the taxpayers. Program revenue is applied to 
each function based on which function generated the specific charges for services and for which functions the operating and capital 
grants have been received. All taxes are shown as general revenues regardless of whether they where levied for a specilic purpose 
or function. The categories of individual functions correspond to the different departments and operations of the Town. Indirect 
expenses which benefit the Town as a whole are not requrred to be allocated among the other functions of the Town and therefore 
they are not allocated. Depreciation expense is allocated to the specific functions (sometimes referred to as departments) of the 
Town based on which function purchased or benefits from the assets. Depreciation on assets shared between two or more functions 
is allocated based on the percentage purchased by each function. If the benefit received from these assets shifts from the function 
making the purchase to another function in a material amount" the depreciation amount being charged will be shifted accordingly. 
Depreciation on capital assets which benefit all of the functions of the Town, such as infrastructure assets, is shown as a separate 
line item. Internal activity between individual funds within the governmental and business-type activities are eliminated in this 
statement TIlls internal activity is also known as transfers in and out and is sho-wn in the fund financial statements as such. The 
above information relating to the government-wide financial statements basis of presentation reference both governmental and 
business-type activities. The Town currently does not have any business-type activities. 

2. Measurement focus and basis of accounting 

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting would be used for both governmental and business-type activities of 
the primary government of the Tovvn and the discretely presented component unit. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and 
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. In other words, 
revenues and the related assets are recognized when they are earned and expenses and the related liabilities are recognized when 
they are incurred. The Town does not have an established policy relating to the use of restricted and unrestricted resources when 
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. Absent of an established 
policy which addresses this situation, accounting guidance states that it should consider that restricted amounts would be reduced 
first and then unrestricted amounts. . 
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C. Fund financial statements 

1. Basis of presentation 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

June 30,2012 

The fund financial statements of the Town consist of a balance sheet with a reconciliation to the government-wide statement of net 
assets, a statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances with a reconciliation to the government-wide statement 
of activities, a budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund, a statement of proprietary net assets.! a statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in proprietary net assets, a statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, and a statement of fiduciary net 
assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These fund financial statements are designed to reportadditionaI and more 
detailed information about the primary government. A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a sell­
balancing set of accounts which record cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities 
or balances, and changes therein which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives 
in accordance with any special regulations, restrictions, or limitations which may exist. The types of funds shown for the Town are 
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. The focus of these fund financial statements are on major funds as 
defined by GASB Statement No. 34. All major funds are reported in a separate column with all non-major funds being aggregated 
and reported in a single column. 

Governmental fund reporting focuses primarily on the sources.! uses, and balances of the current financial resources of the Town. 
The governmental funds used by the Town include the general fund. Other non-major governmental fund types used by the Town 
include special revenue funds, capital project funds, and permanent funds. The general use and purpose of these individual 
governmental fund types are as follows. The individual names of each fund within each non-major governmental fund type can 
be found in the accompanying combining schedules and the purpose of the fund is generally sell explanatory within each title. 

a. General fund - The general fund is the main operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for and report all financial 
resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

b. Special revenue funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are restricted or committed to expendihrre for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The term proceeds 
of specific revenue sources establishes that one or more specific restricted or committed revenues should be the foundation for 
a special revenue fund. The specific restricted or committed revenues may be initially received in another fund and 
subsequently distributed to a speCial revenue fund, however, those amounts should not be recognized as revenue in the fund 
initially receiving them but rather be shown a~ revenue in the special revenue fund in which they will be expended for the 
specified purpose. The restricted or committed proceeds of the specific revenue sources should be expected to continue to make 
up a substantial portion of the resources flowing into the fund. Other financial resources such as investment income and 
transfers from other funds may also be reported within a special revenue fund as long as those resources are restricted, 
committed or assigned to the specified purpose of the fund. 

c. Capital project funds - Capital project funds are used to accountfor and reportfinancial resources that are restricted, committed 
or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, such as the acquisitipn or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. 

d. Permanent funds - Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only 
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the Town's programs and in effect the benefit of the Town 
or its citizens. 

Proprietary and fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The proprietary funds of the town consist 
of the an internal service fund which is used to account for the sell funding dental activities'of the town. Fiduciary funds are used 
to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore carmot be used to support the programs of the Town. 
The fiduciary funds of the Town consist of private pUIpose trust funds and agency funds. Private purpose trust funds account for 
the assets held by the TO"Wll:in a trustee capacity on behalf of the schools in the form of scholarship funds and on behalf of the library 
and cemeteries in similar funds. All of the resources of these funds, including any earnings on invested resources, may be used to 
support their activities. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital. Agency funds are used 
to report resources held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. Agency funds of the Town consist of the student activity 
accounts located at the Board of Education and funds received from Board of Education retirees to be put toward the payment of 
health insurance benefits. 

The balance sheet is used to report information about the current financial resources (assets, liabilities, and fund balances) of each 
major governmental fund and for all non-major governmental funds in the aggregate. The fund balance amounts within the 
governmental funds are segregated between nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned amounts. These 
balances are shown on the face of the balance sheet in the aggregate but are broken out into the required detail in note IP on pages 
28 and 29. An accompanying schedule is also required to be completed to reconcile the total governmental fund balance to the total 
net assets balance of the governmental activities of the Town ,as shown on the government-wide statement of net assets. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

June 30, 2012 

The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances is used to report information about the inflows, outflows, 
and balances of current financial resources of each major governmental fund and all non-major funds in the aggregaie. Revenues 
are classified by major revenue sOUIces while expenditures are classified by categories of individUal functions corresponding to the 
different departments and operations of the Town. The, proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and operating transfers 
between individual funds are sho"'WI1 as other financing sources and uses. An accompanying schedule is also required to be 
completed to reconcile the total change in governmentalfund balances to the total change innetassets of the governmental activities 
of the Town as shown on the government-wide statement of activities. 

The budgetary comparison information is required to be presented for the general fund and each major special revenue or capital 
project fund that has a legally adopted arumal budget. This statement shows the original budget as voted on and appropriated, 
the changes made to each individual departmental line item within the budget, and the final budget which is compared to the actual 
revenue and expenditure balances'to come up with the favorable or unfavorable variance numbers. 

The statement of proprietary net assets, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in proprietary net assets and the statement 
of proprietary cash flows report the activity of the towns internal service fund which accounts for its self funding dental activities. 
The statement of fiduciary net assets and statement of changes in fiduciary net assets report the activity of the towns private purpose 
trust funds and agency funds. 

2. Measurement focus and basis of accounting 

The balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances are prepared using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting for all governmental and fiduciary funds. 
Capital assets and long-term debt are not recorded as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet of the Town. The basis of accounting 
relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. Under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. Property- tax revenues 
are recognized when they become available. Available includes those property taxes receivable which are expected to be collected 
within the first sixty- days after the end of the current fiscal year. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received because they 
are generally not measurable until actually received. Intergovernmental revenues are accrued, when their receipt occurs soon 
enough after the end of the accounting period so as to be both measurable and available. The To"'WI1 generally considers 
intergovernmental revenues which are received within the first sixty days after the end of the current fiscal year to be both 
measurable and available. Expenditures are generally recognized under thls basis of accounting when the related fund liability is 
incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include general long-term debt principal and interest which is recognized when due. 

D. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposit accounts as well as all highly liquid short-term investments with 
a mahlrity date -within three months of the date acquired by the Town. However, the Town may classify money market accounts 
and certificates of deposit accounts as investments regardless of maturity when they are used to gain a higher illterestrate in order 
to more accurately reflect how the Town's cash balances are being used for the benefit of the Town. 

E. Investments 

In accordance -with GASB Statement No. 31, it is the To-wn's policy to value invesbnents at their fair value as of the end of the fiscal 
year. Some of the types of investments authorized by the State of Connecticut include obligations of the United States Government, 
obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the government or governmental agency, the State local government investment pool 
(STIF account), and repurchase agreements. The To-wn does have types of invesbnents other than those authorized by the State. 
However, they represent assets which have been donated to the Town and therefore are not subject to the limitations of the 
applicable State statutes. These do~ted invesbnents are reported in the fund financial statements in the Trumbull investments fund. 

F. Revenue recognition - property taxes 

The Town's property.tax for the current year was levied May 12, 2011 on the grand list as of October 1, 2010, for the real, motor 
vehicle and personal property located ill the T~}wn at a rate of 22.8 mills. Real estate, personal property and motor vehicle taxes 
were due on July I, 2011, and January I, 2012. Supplemental motor vehicle taxes were due on January I, 2012. Interest on unpaid 
taxes commenced once the aforementioned due dates were missed, at 18% per annum or 1.50% per month. As described earlier, 
in the fund financial statements property tax revenues are recorded :in the amount of the annual principal property tax assessment 
with an adjustment being made for the amount of principal expected to be collected 'Within the first sixty days after the end of the 
current fiscal year. In the government-mde financial statements, only the current year principal assessment is recorded as revenue. 
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G. Receivables 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

June 30, 2012 

All property taxr intergovernmental and other receivables are reported net of any allowance for doubtful accounts. Fund financial 
statementaccounis receivable balances include property tax principal ampunts, intergovernmental amounts due on grant and other 
nriscellaneous agreements, and other receivable amounts which consist primarily of school tuition and other miscellaneous amounts. 
On the government-wide financial statements, the current year accounts receivable balance of $675,270 is made up of general 
property taxes receivable of $469,313, the Lake Williams special assessment receivable of $5r 962, state, federal and other grant 
receivables of $163,395 and other miscellaneous receivables of $36,600. The long-term accounts receivable balance of $105,047 is 
made up of the accumulated delinquent interest and fees on active property tax principal amounts. Delinquent interest and fees 
on suspense tax receivable principal balances are not included. The notes receivable balance of $639,203 is related to a CDBG grant 
and.loan fund program received and entered into by the Town which is more fully described in note 10 on page 36. All of the above 
mentioned receivable amounts are also recorded on the fund financial statements with the exception of the accumulated deljnquent 
interest and fees on property tax principal amounts which are only required to be reported on the government-wide financial 
statements. The Town will book an unbilled receivable in situations when a grant or contract has incurred expenditures which will 
be re:imbursed by a funding source but which have not yet been fully received in cash for the amount incurred. The current 
allowance for doubtful accounts in relation to the above mentioned accounts receivable balances was eS?mated to be $0. The Town 
considers past experience with receivable balance collections and current aging report details when determining its calculation for 
an allowance for doubtful accounts, Receivables are only written off once it has been determined that all other methods of collection 
have been utilized without success. 

H. Tax acquired property 

Property which has been foreclosed on by the Tovvn due to non-payment of taxes or other similar situations is classified as tax 
acquired property at the value of the original outstanding tax receivable amount. Interest and fees on the property are recorded 
at such time when the property is sold. 

I. Inventories 

On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis 
and are expensed when used which is in accordance with the consumption method. On the fund financial statements, inventories 
are presented at cost on a first-in, first-out basis and are recorded as an expenditure when used, The Tovvn currently has recorded 
an inventory amount of $11,729 as it relates to the school lunch program, 

J. Prepaid items 

Payments made to vendors for services and in certain circumstances goods that will benefit periods beyond the end of the fiscal year 
are recorded as prepaid expenses-€xpenditures using the consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and 
reflecting the expense-expenditure in the subsequent year (s) in which the services are consumed. Expenditures relatively minor 
in nature for insurance and similar services extending over more than one accounting period need not be allocated between or 
among accounting periods, but may be accounted for as expenditures of the period of acquisition. The Town considers relatiyely 
minor in nature to include aggregated similar items not exceeding $5r OOO. Payments made to vendors for services and in certain 
circumstances goods that will only benefit periods beyond the end of the fiscal year which are related to grants are recorded as 
prepaid expenses-expenditures regardless of the dollar amount. 

K Inter fund receivables and payables 

Inter fund receivables and payables represent the balance of activity between the different funds of the To-wn. These activities 
include but are not limited to transfers which were not physically made bu tneed to be recorded to keep track of the individual fund 
balances, a portion of the annual tax commitment applicable to certain special revenue and other funds of the To-wn which are 
sho-wn as transfers within the annual budget document approved by the :inhabitants of the To"WIl and cash receipts which may have 
been deposited in the cash account of one fund but which are for the use of another-fund, The actual receipt of this tax revenue 
and other revenues is not deposited into the individual funds but rather into the general fund and accounted for as an inter fund 
receivable. Expenditures for one fund paid for out of another fund are also included in these balances. The balance of inter fund 
receivables and inter fund payables as shown on the balance sheet must equal. These inter fund balances and related activities have 
been eliminated in the government-wide statement of net assets and the statement of activities. 
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L. Capital assets 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

June 30, 2012 

Capital assets of the To"WIl include land, land improvements, builclings, building improvements, vehicles equipment, infrastruchlre, 
and all other tangible and intangible assets which may arise that are used in operations and that have an initial useful life extending 
beyond a single fiscal year. Infrastructure· assets are long-lived capital assets that are normally stationary in nature and can 
normally be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than most capital assets. The types of infrastructure assets 
recorded by the Town include butarenotlimited to improved town roads, unimproved town roads, and bridges. Allirnprovements 
to infrastructure and other capital assets are capitalized which add to the value or materially extend the life of the asset. All capilm 
assets of the Town are recorded athistoricalcostor estimated historical cost when the actual arnountis not available. The historical 
cost of these assets includes not only the cost of the asset but also capitalized interest charges and other direct costs associated with 
placing the asset into its intended location and its intended use. The Town maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for all 
capital assets with the exception of land purchases which are recorded regardless of antount. Donated capital assets are reported 
at their estimated fair value at the time of acquisition plus other direct costs associated with placing the asset into its intended 
location and intended use. Capital assets are only shown on the government-wide statement of net assets. The capital assets of the 
component unit of the Town are accounted for in the saine marmer. 

Land and land improvements are not depredated. All other individual capital assets of the Town are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. Under this method, the recorded cost of each capital asset less-any estimated 
residual value is divided by the estimated useful life resulting in an even amount of depreciation to be taken on an annual basis. 
The estimated residual value is the amount that the capital asset is expected to be worth at the end of its useful life. The general 
estimated useful lives for specific types of capital assets are 3 - 10 years for equipment, 5 -10 years for vehicles, 30 - 50 years for 
buildings and building improvements and infrastructure. Capital assets which are under construction but not yet completed are 
recorded as construction in progress. These capital assets will not begin to be depreciated until they are completed. Depreciation 
expense is allocated to the specific functions (sometimes referred to asdepartrnents) of the Town based on which function purchased 
or benefits from the assets. Depreciation on assets shared between two or more functions is allocated base:d on the percentage 
purchased by each function. If the benefit received from these assets shifts from the function making the purchase to another 
function in a material amount, the depreciation amount being charged will be shifted accordingly. DepreCiation on capital assets 
which benefit all of the functions of the Town, such as infrastruchlre assets, is shown as a separate line item. Depreciation expense 
on capital assets is only shown on the government-wide statement of activities and is added to the individual function or 
department as described above 

M. Deferred revenue 

On the government-wide financial statements, revenue amounts which have been received in cash but not yet earned or recognized 
are recorded as deferred revenue. The current year deferred revenue balance of $111,660 on the government-wide financial 
statements is made up of unearned Town and educational grant balances of $84,512, property tax receipts collected in the current 
fiscal year which relate to the upcoming fiscal year assessment in the amount of $2,292, the outstanding Lake Williams special 
assessment balance of $5,962 and other miscellaneous items in the amount of $18,894. On the fund financial statements, property 
taxes receivable not expected to be received within the first 60 days after the fiscal year end (ie. not measurable and available) as 
well as property tax revenue which has been received in advance of the fiscal year to which it applies and otherrniscellaneous items 
are recorded as deferred revenue. The current year deferred.revenue balance of $420,054 on the fund financial statements is made 
up of the property tax receivable balance not expected to be received within the first 60 days after the fiscal year end of $392,906, 
property tax receipts collected in the current fiscal year which relate to the upcoming fiscal year assessment in the amount of $2,292, 
the outstanding Lake Williams special assessment balance of $5,962 and other miscellaneous items in the amount of $18,894. 
Codification of Governrnental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards section 1600.114 states that in regard to the modified 
accrual basis ·of accounting, material revenues received prior to the normal time of receipt should be recorded as deferred revenue. 

N. Budget 

The Town's policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations. The budget is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting 
(except:in relation to teacher on-behalf payments made by the State which are not budgeted for and encumbrances) which is 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, the budget calls for certain amounts to be transferred or 
allocated to specific funds which have been set up by the Town for specific purposes. A portion of the budgeted revenues to be 
raised by the annual tax comrnitrl1entis considered by the Town to be a specific revenue source which is committed to expenditure 
for these specified purposes. The budget calls for the revenue to be shown within the general fund and a transfer out to be shown. 
to each of these specific funds. In accordance with the true accounting definition of a special revenue fund, specific revenue sources 
which in this case would be a portion of the annual tax commitment would be reqUired to be shown as revenue of the specific fund. 
Therefore, on the Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (Statement D), property tax revenues have been 
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shown for these specific special revenue funds with no transfers in or out being shown :in either the general fund or the special 
revenue funds. On the Budget to actual statement for the general fund (Statement E) these amounts have been shown as property 
tax revenues for the general fund and as transfers out for the general fund in accordance with the approved budget of the Town. 
The legal level of control (the level at which expenditures may notlegally exceed appropriations) for each adopted annual operating 
budget generally is the department level within each general function of the TaWIl. Only the Board of Finance may approve budget 
transfers within and between expendihlre classes and individual departments in accordance with applicable State statutes. The 
bottom line budgeted revenue and expenditure amounts can only change upon approval of the inhabitants of the Town through 
a special town meeting. The procedures followed in establishing the budgetary data shown in the financial statements is as follows: 

a. Early in the second half of the last fiscal year the Town's selectmen, departments, boards and commissions submitted budget 
requests for the year beginning July 1. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

b. Hearings are then held for the submitted budget requests by functions: (1) Selectmen's budget, (2) departments, (3) boards and 
commissions, (4) capital and nomecurring requests and (5) Board of Education. 

c. A meeting of the inhabitants of the Town is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget after public notice of 
the meeting had been given. The current fiscal year budget was adopted by the inhabitants of the Town on May 12, 2011. 

Revenues and Expenditures Net 
other financing and other change in 

sources financing uses fund balance 

Statement D - GAAP basis $ 24,243,822 $ -23,50U98 $ 739,624 
Tax commitment for special revenue funds 364,181 -364,181 
State on-behali payments -1,680A91 U80A91 
Current fiscal year enCumbrances 
Prior fiscal year encumbrances 

Statement E - Budgetary basis $ 22,927,512 $ -22,187,888 $ 739,624 

O. Major funds ~ Fund financial statements only 

The focus of the governmental funds of the To'WTI is on the major funds. The general fund of the Town must always be shown as 
a major fund. In addition, other governmental funds are shown as major based on the following criteria. 

a. 'The total assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures of an individual governmental or enterprise (if present) fund are at least 
10% of the corresponding totals for all funds of the governmental or enterprise (if present) fund type and 

b. The total assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures of an individual governmental or enterprise (if present) fund are at least 
5% of the corresponding totals for all governmental and enterprise (if present) funds combined. 

c. Any other individual governmental or enterprise (if present) fund that the Tovvn believes is particularly important to the 
financial statement users whether because of public interest, consistency, or other reasons. 

For the purposes of the current fiscal year fund financial statements, the folIovving individual governmental funds have been 
classified as major. A brief description of the fund and the activities reported within the fund is as follows. 

d. Town construction projects - TIris fund is used to account for the financial resources received and expended for five individual 
town projects. Consb:uction at the elementary and middle schools were financed by State consb:uction revenues and tluough 
Town appropriations and bonding. The fire safety complex and senior center were financed tluough annual appropriations 
and bonding for the fire safety complex. The Amston lake sewer project is being financed tluough initial appropriations from 
the town unassigned general fund balance which "Will be repaid by the fund and also through bonding. Financial information 
for these projects can be found on Sub-Schedule A on page 56. 

e. Capital and non-recurring fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used by the To'WIl to purchase or 
construct capital assets or projects. The capital assets purchased through this fund are usually more costly then those purchased 
and accounted for within other funds, functions, and departments. The activities within this fund are financed through annual 
appropriations as approved as part of the annual budget and through other miscellaneous grants and revenues. 

f, TrUIIlbull invesbnents fund - TIlls fund is used to account for three sets ofinvesbnents donated to the town by Hugh Trumbull 
Adams 'With the interest and dividend revenue generated by these investments to be used to help fund the operations of the 
town library, the Adams community center, and the Jonathan Trumbull Jr. house. 
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P. Fund balance classification policies and procedures - fund financial statements only 

The fund balance amounts of the governmental funds of the Town on the balance sheet are broken down betw-een nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These fund balance classifications are described as follows: 

a. Nonspendable fund balance - Nonspendable fund balance include amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
in a spendable form such as inventories or' prepaid expenditures or (b) they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact such as the principal portion of a permanent fund. The nonspendable funds balance amounts as reported 
by the Town consist solely of the principal portion of its permanent funds and a corresponding amount for the recorded amount 
of inventory and prepaid expenditures, when applicable. 

b. Restricted fund balances - Restricted fund balance include amounts that are restricted to a specific purpose when the restraints 
are placed on the use of the resources either by (a) externally imposed creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation 
authorizes the Town to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources from external sources and includes 
a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specilic purposes stipulated in the legislation. The 
restricted fund balance amounts of the Tovvn consist of the. residual fund balance amounts at the end of the fiscal year as they 
relate to grants received from either State, Federal or local funding sources or donations received to be spent for specific 
purposes. These amounts are restricted to be expended on the items outlined within the funding agreement with the Town 
and cannot be used for any other specified purposes. In addition, the Town has created a special revenue fund to account for 
and report the proceeds of funds collected by the town clerks office as mandated by the State of Connecticut in relation to 
historic document preservation fees and locip surcharge assessment fees. These mandated fees are considered a form of 
enabling legislation :imposed by the State and therefore the funds collected by the Town are restricted to be expended based 
on the parameters of the enabling legislation. Other funds restricted by the Town include the balance of the housing 
rehabilitation income fund which relates to housing rehabilitation grants received by the Town,. the non-principal portion of 
permanent funds, the student activity related accounts located at the elementary, middle and high school of the Town which 

. are restricted for educational purposes and the remaining balance within the school lunch program which is restricted to be 
used withln the school lunch program based on the grant revenue received as well as State statutes. 

c. Committed fund balance - Committed fund balance include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the Town's highest level of decision making authority. These committed amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Tovvn removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
it employed to previously commit those amounts. The Board of Finance is considered to be the highest level of decision makIDg 
authority within the Town for determining committed fund balance amounts. The Board of Finance has the final approval for 
the budget amounts which are presented to the citizens of the Town for approval and in turn the establishment of the related 
special revenue or capital project funds. The approval of the annual town budget includes amounts characterized as specific 
revenue sources as a portion of either the annual tax commitment or other specilic revenue sources cont:a..med and voted on 
'Within the annual budget. An example of a committed fund balance amount would relate to an approved transfer to an 
established special revenue fund or the capital nonrecurring fund. The residual fund balance amount within these funds at 
the end of the fiscal year would be classilied as committed fund balance. Any subsequent change in the specific purpose or 
use of these committed funds would need to be approved either at the annual town meeting or a special town meeting. 

d. Assigned fund balance - Assigned fund balance include amounts that are constrained by the Town with the intent to be used 
for specific purposes, but which are neither restricted or committed. The intent to use funds for specific purposes is to be 
assigned by either town meeting appropriations or the Board of Finance. The First Selectman has the authority to accept funds 
on behalf of the Town which are specific revenue sources to be used for specific purposes and to establish special revenue or 
capital project funds to account and report these amounts in accordance with the direction received from the Board of Finance. 
Assigned special revenue and capital project funds are usually made up of small streams of specific revenue sources for specilic 
purposes for which there is a perceived benefit to segregating and reporting the funds rather then including them within the 
general fund. In addition, annual budgetary encumbrances outstanding at the end of the fiscal year would be classified by the 
Town as assigned amounts "Within the general or specific special revenue or capital project funds. Subsequent fiscal year 
budgeted appropriations of the unaSSigned general fund balance would also be reported as assigned fund balance amounts 
of the general fund at the end of the current fiscal year. 

e. Unassigned fund balance - Unassigned fund balance is the residual cIassilication for the general fund of the Town. This 
ciassilication represents fund balance amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been restricted, 
committed or assigned to spe(;ific purposes withm the general fund. In addition, individual governmental'funds whose ending 
fund balance is negative are also classified as unassigned within the specific fund. 
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The Town does not have an established policy relating to the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts as it relates to when it 
considers committed, assigned or unassigned amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which 
amounts ill any of these three unrestricted classifications could be used. Absent of an established policy which addresses this 
situation, accounting guidance states that it should consider that committed amounts would be reduced fust, followed by assigned 
amounts and then unassigned amounts. In addition, restricted fund balance amounts are considered to have been spent prior to 
1llUestricted amounts under the same circumstances. The followillg table is designed to provide more detailed information. 
regarding the aggregated fund balance classifications which are included on the balance sheet. 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 
Prepaid items 
Non-USDA inventory 
Permanent funds principal 

Restricted: 
Town grants 
Educational grants 
Educational programs 
Educational activity accounts 
Trumbull donations funds 
Other town donation funds 
Housing rehab income fund 
Enabling legislation funds 
Permanent funds non-principal 

Committed: 
Town construction projects 
Capital nonrecurring balances 
Lebanon pl,lblic library 
Lebanon recreation commission 
Jonathan Trumbull Jr. house 
Adams community center 
Town improvement program 
Senior vans program 
Lake Williams project 

Assigned: 
Dog fund 
Fema storID grant funds 
Summer dance festival 
Cemetery lot funds 
Historic bulleting funds 

Unassigned: 
General fund 
Town construction projects 
Town grants 
Educational grants 

Total fund balances 

Q. Encumbrance accounting 

$ 

Town Capital & 
General 

fund 
construction nonrecurring 

projects fund 

25,294 $ $ 

2,113,896 
801,009 

2,788,319 
-587,126 

Trumbull 
investments 

fund 

$ 

1,948,585 

Non-major 
governmental 

funds 

$ 
6,311 

322,270 

65;336 
19,188 
7U27 
76,297 

242,923 
37,234 

663,151 
46,694 

1,753 

79,422 
46,920 
40,997 
32,954 
51,777 

105,952 
54,084 

2,637 
48,869 
12,916 

832 
10,123 

-57,600 
-23,732 

$ 2,813,613 $ 1,526,770 $ 801,009 $ 1,948,585 $ 1,954,135 

$ 

Totals 

25,294 
6,311 

322,270 

65,336 
19,188 
71,827 
76,297 

2,191,508 
37,234 

663,151 
46,694 
1,753 

211,896 
801,009 

79,422 
46,920 
40,997 
32,954 
51,777 

105,952 
54,084 

2,637 
48,869 
12,916 

832 
10,123 

2,788,319 
-587,126 
-57,600 
-28,732 

$ 9,04U12 

Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are notrecorded as expendimres until receipt of materials or services. For budgetary 
purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The Town of Lebanon does utilize encumbrance accounting. The assignment of 
fund balance at June 30, 2012 was $0 for the general fund as it relates to the Board of Education, and $0 for the non-major special 
revenue funds as they relate to the State and Federal grant programs of the Board of Education. 
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affectthe amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying 
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

S. Unclassified and program expenditures 

The To'Wll uses a departmental expenditure category labeled unclassified and program to accountfor certain types of expenditures 
that they do not feel truly fall into the traditional departmental expenditure categories of the Town. The general fund classifies 
To'WIl wide fringe benefits into this deparbnental expenditure category. In addition, the expenditures of the Town's housing 
rehabilitation program and revolving loan fund are grouped into this departmental expenditure category as well as other 
miscellaneous programs that do not fall mto any of the traditional departmental expenditure categories of the Town. 

T. Interest expense 

The total interest expense incurred by the Town during the current fiscal year totaled $157,579 and related solely to the long-term 
bonds, notes and capital leases payable outstanding. 'The entire amount of interest expense incurred was charged to expense. 
Interest expense of $155,662 was sho'WTl as a general fund line item and $1,917 was part of the general fund education line item. 

Note 2 - Restricted cash and investments - government-wide financial statements only 

The To"WTI breaks cash and mvestments down between a regular current asset and an other asset restricted on the government-wide 
statement of net assets. The other asset restricted investment amount is made up of the balance of the mvesbnents which have been 
donated to the Town and whose mterest and earnings are used to pa.r#ally fund the operations of the Towns library, community 
center, and the Jonathan Trumbull JI. house. This investments balance can also be seen on the fund financial statements balance 
sheet as the major fund labeled the Trumbull invesbnents fund. In additionr the permanent funds include investments in the 
amount of $322,615. These investments are also shown as restricted. The other assets restricted cash amount is made up of cash 
balances which are restricted for a specific purpose in subsequent fiscal years, The current year amountsho-wn on the government­
wide statement of net assets can be broken down as follows. 

Community development grants and programs 
State, federal, and other grant program balances deferred 
Principal balance of non-major permanent funds 
Restricted donation funds 
Enabling legislation program funds 
Educational activity accounts and program funds 

Note 3 - Deposits and investments 

Deposits 

$ 

$ 

24,306 
84,511 
9,512 

280,167 
46,694 

129,662 
574,852 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits or 
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the posseSSion of an outside party. The Town does not have a formal 
deposit policy for custodial credit risk beyond the requirements of State statutes. All interest bearing transaction deposit accounts, 
including certificates of deposit, savings accounts, and money market accounts are 'currently insured up to $250,000 by FDIC per 
financial institution and per the official custodian of the Town. In addition, recent amendments to the FDI Act provide full deposit 
insurance coverage for non-interest bearing transaction-accounts beginning December 31, 2010, for a two-year period. At year end, 
the carrymg amount of the Town's deposits was $8,820,591 which is shown in the financial statements a.s cash balances of $4,322,448 
and investment balances of $4,498,143 which represent money market accounts and certificates of deposit. The correspondmg bank 
balances of these accounts at various financial institutions totaled $9,097,091 with the difference between the_two amounts being 
represented by tin.Ung differences 'With outstanding checks, deposits in transit and cash on hand. Of these bank balances, $2,238,629 
was covered by FDIC with the remaining $6,858,462 representing balances that where uninsured and collateralized by securities 
held by the pledging financial institutions' trust department or agent but not in the Town's name. 
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The Town does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk beyond the requirements of State statutes. All of the 
Tovvn's deposits are in qualified public institutions as defined by state staillte. Under this staillte, any bank holding public deposits 
must at all times maintain, segregated from its other assets, eligible collateral in an amount equal to a certain percentage of its public 
deposits. The applicable percentage is determined based on the bank's risk-based capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is 
determined based on either the public deposits reported on the most recent quarterly call report, or the average of the public 
deposits reported on the four most recent quarterly call reports, whichever is greater. The collateral is kept in the custody of the trust 
deparbnent of either the pledging bank or another bank in the name of the pledging bank 

The Lebanon Volunteer Fire Department is reported wit1:lln the government-wide financial statements of the Town as a discretely 
presented component unit. The Department does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk beyond the requirements 
of State statutes. At year end, the carrying amount of the Department's' deposits was $562,216 which is shown in the financial 
statements as cash balances of$124,839 and investment balances of$437,377 whlchrepresentmoney market accounts and certificates 
of deposit. The corresponding bank balances of these accounts at various financial :institutions totaled $563,906 with the difference 
between the two amounts being represented by timing dllferences with outstanding checks and deposits in transit Of these bank 
balances, $250,000 was covered by FDIC with the remaining$313,906 representing balances that where uninsured and collateralized 
by securities held by the pledging financial institutions' trust department or agent but not in the Department's name in accordance 
with applicable state statutes as described above. 

Invesbnents 

The following schedule shows the dllferent types of investments held by the T ovvn, the maturities of those investments and the 
associated credit ratings as of June 30,2012. 

Type 

Goverrunental funds: 

CT short term investment fund 
Preferred stocks 
Money market and certificates 
Mutual funds fixed income 
Money market ready asset funds 
U.s. Treasury notes 
Corporate bonds. 

Stock equities 
Mutual fund equities 

Fiduciary funds: 

Money market and certificates 

Discretely presented component unit: 
Lebanon volunteer fire department 

Money market and certificates 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fair 
value 

24,915 
10,575 

U08,245 
68,403 
17,670 
72,298 
29,528 

4,631,634 
1,732,146 

28,061 

6,391,841 

89,898 

437;377 

Maturities in years 

Less than 
1 ye!'lr 

$ 24,915 
10,575 

4,095,726 
68,403 
17,670 
50,273 

$4,267,562 

$ 87,441 

$ 275,167 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1-5 
years 

312,519 

22,025 

334,544 

2,457 

162,210 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

6 -10 
years 

29,528 
29,528 

Credit ratings 

Moody's S&P 

not rated AAAm 
not rated BBB+ 
not rated not rated 
not rated not rated 
.not rated not rated 

Aaa AAA 
A2 A-

not rated not rated 

not rated not rated 

Interest Rate Risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing 
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. Credit Risk - The Tovvn does not have a formal investment 
policy that would further limit its investment choices beyond those limited by Connecticut State statutes. The types of investments 
authorized to be carried by the Town are in accordance with those authorized by the State of Connecticut. These investments 

31 



Town of Lebanon.. Connecticut 
Notes to the basic financial statements 

lune 30, 2012 

include obligations of the United States Government, obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the government or governmental . 
agency, and repurchase agreements. The Town may vote to accept investments other than those authorized by the State in 
situations where they have been donated to the Town. Custodial Credit Risk - For an mvesbnent custOdial credit risk is the risk 
that, in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Tovvn does not have a formal policy for custodial cred,it risk. 

Note 4 -Inter fund receivables, payables, and b:~fers :- fund financial statements only 

A. Inter fund receivables and payables - The Town mainta:ins a cash pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's portion 
oftrus pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "due to or from other funds" under each fund's caption. The purpose for inter fund 
balances is to keep track of each fund's position in this_cash pool. These balances are not expected to be repaid due to the fact that 
they simply represent funds collected or spent by one fund on behalf of another fund. The following information represents mter 
fund receivables and payables by individual major fund and non-major funds in the aggregate. Only the balances for major funds 
are being shown below as is required. 

General fund: 
Town construction projects 
Capital and non-recurring fund 
Non-major special revenue funds 
Non-major capital project funds 
Non-major permanent funds 

$ 

$ 

Receivable 
due from 

587,126 

218,488 
58,440 

6,344 
870,398 

$ 

$ 

Payable 
due to 

=,191 
792,425 
794,735 

54,925 

1,864,276 

B. Inter fund b:ansfers - Transfers in and out represent budgeted transfers which are not always physically made but need to be 
recorded to keep track of the individual fund balances. There were no transfers made by the Town during the current fiscal year 
which were significant which have been deemed not to have occurred on a routine basis and which are inconsistent with the 
activities of the fund (s) making the transfer (s). The following information repre~ents inter fund transfers by individual major fund 
and non-major funds in the aggregate. The $350,000 transfer from the general fund to the tovvn construction projects fund represents 
a current fiscal year loan from the unassigned general fund balance to the Amston Lake sewer construction project. A loan in the 
amount of $400~OOO was made in this same manner in the prior fiscal year. The $750,000 transfer to the general fund from the town 
construction projects fund represents the current fiscal year repayment of these two loans. The $135,000 transfer from the general 
fund represents the general funds' approved portion of the pru::chase price for the synagogue road property which was transferred 
to the cemetery lots special revenue fund where the full purchase was recorded. The amounts shown below for general fund 
transfers out represent balances recorded in accordance with GAAP and shown on Statement D. Budgeted transfers in the amount 
of $364,181 have been shown on Statement D as property tax revenue due to the fact that the basis for special revenue funds need 
to be specific revenue sources of which the Town considers these amounts. 

Transfers in Transfers out 
General fund: 
Town construction projects $ 750,000 $ -350,000 
Capital and non-recurring fund -749,400 
Non-major special revenue funds -135,000 
Non-major permanent funds 67 -1,682 

$ 750,067 $ -1,236,082 

Town consb:uction projects: 
General fund $ 350,000 $ -750,000 

Capital and non-recurring fund: 
General fund $ 749,400 $ 
Non-major special revenue funds -10,000 

$ 749,400 $ -10,000 

Trumbull investments fund: 
Non-major special revenue funds $ $ -67,096 
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Note 5 - Capital assets - government-wide financial statements only 

The follqwing schedule shows the capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Information about the specific 
accounting policies of the Town in relation to capital assets can be found in item L of note Ion page 26 of the notes to the financial 
statements. 

Balance Balance 
Governmental activities: 07L01(11 Additions Retirements 06(30(12 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and improvements $ 1,896,289 $ 225,000 $ $ 2,121,289 
Construction in progress 564,655 3,067,020 -384,159 3,247,516 
Total at historical value 2,460,944 3,292,020 -384,159 5,368,805 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 35,767,406 16,905 35,784,311 
Vehicles 3,600,939 256,388 -132,764 3,724,563 
Equipment 782,688 86,050 868,738 
Infrastructure 25,802,849 833,636 26,636,485 
Total at historical value 65,953,882 1,192,979 -132,764 67,014,097 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Building and improvement<> -11,323,880 -865,955 -12,189,835 
Vehicles -2,255,942 132,764 -178,421 -2,301,599 
Equipment -584,449 -64,865 -649,314 
Infrastructure -17,464,930 -459,411 -17,924,341 
Total accumulated depreciation -31,629,201 132,764 -1,568,652 -33,065,089 

Total capital asset<> being depreciated (net) 34,324,681 1,325,743 -1,701,416 33,949,008 

Governmental activities capital assets (net) $ 36,785,625 $ 4,617,763 $ -2,085,575 $ 39,317,813 

Depreciation expense by function or department: 

General government $ 6,910 
Public safety 145,844 
Public works 79,516 
Health & social 64,639 
Education 810,872 
Unclassified 1,460 
General infraslructure depreciation 459,411 

$ 1,568,652 

Balance Balance 
Component unit 07L01(11 Additions Retirement<> 06(30(12 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements $ 164,921 $ $ $ 164,921 
Vehicles and equipment 131,309 26,372 157,681 

296,230 26,372 322,602 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and improvements -31,703 -9,317 -41,020 
Vehicles and equipment -73,779 -22,772 -96,551 

-105,482 -32,089 -137,571 

Total component unit capital assets (net) $ 190,748 $ 26,372 $ -32,089 $ 185,031 
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Note 6 - Long-term debt liabilities - government-wide financial statements only 

Amount due 
Balance Balance within 

Governmental activities: 07/1[11 Additions Reductions 06[30/12 one year 

Outstanding payables: 
$5,750,000 bond payable $ 3,825,000 $ $ -385,000 $ 3,440,000 $ 385,000 
$4,500,000 bond payable 225,OOG -225,000 
$486,650 note payable 215,813 -28,395 187,418 29,847 
$62,480 capital lease payable 45,288 -12,171 33,117 12,771 
Total outstanding payables 4,311,101 -650,566 3,660,535 427,618 

Other liabilities: 
Accrued camp. absences - school 67,122 -801 66,321 
Accrued camp. absences - town 29,705 -1,394 28,311 
Accrued landfill post-closure costs 100,631 -11,500 89,131 
Total other liabilities 197,458 -13,695 183,763 

Total long-term liabilities $ 4,508,559 $ $ -664,261 $ 3,844,298 $ 427,618 

The followmg sections outline the terms, conditions, and ending balance of the outstanding bonds, capital leases and accrued 
compensated balances of the Town as of June 30, 2012: 

A. Bonds and notes payable 

$5,750,000 'bond payable issued in August of 2005 to finance two school renovation projects and a fire safety 
complex project. Annual principal instalbnents range from $385,000 to $380,000 through August of 2021. 
Interest at 3.80%. 

$486,650 note payable issued in February of1998 to finance the purchase of property. Monthly payments are 
$3,212 which includes interest at 5.00%. The bonds are due in February of 2018. 

$ 

$ 

3,440,000 

187,418 
3,627,418 

The following is a summary of the total outstanding bonds and notes payable principal and interest requirements for the above 
referenced bonds and notes payable for the fiscal years ending June 30,: 

Princi:eal futerest Total PrinciEal Interest Total 

$ 414,847 $ 132,098 $ 546,945 $ 402,112 $ 50,908 $ 453,020 
416,374 115,941 532,315 380,000 36,100 416,100 
417,979 99,706 517,685' 380,000 21,660 401,660 
419,666 83,389 503,055 380,000 7,220 387,220 
416,440 67,080 483,520 3,627,418 614,102 4,241,520 

B. Capital leases payable 

The capital lease of the Town is related to a lease purchase agreement for photocopiers tluough the Board of Education. This lease 
purchase agreement runs from January of 2010 through June of 2015 with monthly payments of $1,174. The gross amount of the 
photocopiers recorded as an eqUipment type capital asset is $62,480. This item is being amortized over a 7 year period and the 
accumulated amortization (depreciation) taken as of June 30, 2012 was $22,315. The annual payments on this lease for the next three 
fiscal years is equal to approximately $14,088, $14,088 and $7/044 per year. The amount of these payments representing interest 
is equal to approximately $2,103 leaving the net present value of future minimum lease payments equaling $33,117. 
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Employees of the Town and the Board of Education are allowed to earn paid absences for vacations and/or sick time. The 
employee's right to be paid for these future vacation and sick time absences are attributable to services already performed and 
earned vacation and sick time balances do accumulate. Town accumulated balances are paid when an employee leaves. Therefore, 
the probability of these benefits being paid can be determined and a liability has been recorded in the accompanying government­
wide financial statements on the statement ofnetassets. School accumulated vacation balances are also paid when employees leave. 
However, school accumulated sick balances are only paid when an employee retires. Therefore, the probability of these school 
accumulated vacation benefits being paid can be determined and a liability has been recorded in the accompanying govemment­
wide financial statements on the statement of net assets. The probability of school accumulated sick benefits being paid cannot be 
determined and therefore no liability for these benefits has been recorded. As of June 3D, 2012, school accumulated sick balances 
totaled approximately $337,078. A current portion of these recorded liabilities has not been estimated due to the fact that these 
benefits (accumulated sick and vacation time) may be used by the employees during the course of the fiscal year or they may be 
paid out upon retirement or termination. An estimate could be made based on prior year activity but the Town believes there are 
too many variables which could render this estimate useless. 

D. Accrued landfill post~c1osure costs 

The Town of Lebanon municipal solid waste landfill was closed in October of 1993 due to new regulations imposed by the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency which the town was unable to meet. The cost of capping the landfill was paid for out of 
the Town's annual operating budget. The post-closure monitoring, which will continue for up to 30 years, will also be paid for out 
of the Town's annual operating budget. The Town set up a long-term liability to accountfor these funds being set aside for this post­
closure care. In accordance with GAAP, the expense for this liability was to be recorded in each period based on the landfill capacity 
used to date. As of June 30, 2012 the amount outstanding for post-closure monitoring was $89,131 which is shown as a long-tern 
liability on the government-wide statement of net assets. A current portion of this liability has not been estimated due to the fact 
that the price of the upcoming fiscal year monitoring, year end report and other possibly unforseen costs is unknown. 

Note 7 - Short-term debt liabilities - government-wide financial statements only 

The Town entered into a bond anticipation note agreement in October of 2011 in the amount of $5,100,000 to provide interim 
funding for the Amston lake sewer construction project which is being account for within the town construction projects major fund 
within the fund financial statements. The note was issued at a premium of $22,886 and runs through October of 2012 with interest 
atl.00%. 'Ibis bond anticipation note is not being shown as a liability within the fund financial statements because the town will 
be refinancing this short-term note on a long-term basis as described in the subsequent events note 18 on page 42. 

Note 8 - Deficit fund balances 

In accordance with GAAP, all deficit fund balances and their nature must be disclosed. The following individual major and non­
major funds had deficit fund balances ,as of June 30, 2012. These deficit fund ·balances represent an excess of expenditures over 
actual revenues, appropriations,_and recorded receivables. The LES buildingprojectwas jointly funded by the State and the Town. 
The current deficit in this fund represents the Town's estimated portion to date which will be appropriated in an upcoming fiscal 
years less any additional amounts received from the State. Each project was submitted to the State as being complete:in December 
of 2011 and was subsequently audited and reviewed by the State which should be completed witlUn one year from the date of 
submission. The majority of the remaining deficits represent state, federal and other award program balances which resulted from 
funds being expended either before they can or have been billed for. 

Major funds: 
Town cons-truction projects 
LES building project 
Senior center construction project 

$ 

$ 

-585,232· 
-1,894 

-587,126 
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Non-major funds: 
Special revenue funds 
Survey and planning grant 
School vo-ag equipment_grant 
School educational grants 

Capital project funds 
Town bridge projects 
Dot fix it first grant 
Tyler field project grant 

$ -1 
-27,749 

-983 
-32,979 

-92 
-24,528 

$ -86,332 
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Note 9 - Net asset balances - invested in capital assets 

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt net asset amount on the government-wide statement of net assets consisted of the 
followmg items as of June 30, 2012. 

Recorded value of capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Book value of capital assets 
Less capital assets related debt 
Total invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Note 10 - Net asset and fund balances - restricted 

Governmental 
activities 

$ 

$ 

72,382,902 
-33,065,089 
39,317,813 
-8,760,535 
30,557,278 

$ 

$ 

Component 
unit 

322,601 
-137,570 
185,031 

185,031 

The Town has received a number of housing rehabilitation CDBG grants from the U.s. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. The purpose of these grants is to provide assistance to low to moderate income residents for addressing housing 
needs with a priority being placed on public health and safety code violations and to establish a permanent loan fund using the 
proceeds described as follows. Each resident receiving benefits under these grants is required to sign a deferred partially forgivable 
promissory note. These notes must be repaid to the Town as prescribed in the agreement with the proceeds being deposited into 
the aforementioned loan fund and permanently used by the Town for other similar programs. Program income including interest 
income earned on repaid funds before the funds are reused must be dep'osited into this loan fund. The principal amOlll1t of the loan 
will automatically be reduced by 10% on each consecutive anniversary of the note agreement for a maxhnUID of 5 yea:rs or 50% of 
the original note balance. This annual forgiven portion is shown as a bad debt item and reduces the restricted net asset balance in 
the government-wide financial statements and the restricted fund balance:in the fund financial statements. As of June 30, 2012, the 
followmg balances represent the loan fund described above. 

Cash and restricted cash 
Due from other funds 
Notes receivable (net of allowance) 
Restricted net assets and restricted fund balance 

Note 11- On-behalf payments 

$ 

$ 

23,948 

639,203 
-663,151 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the Town has recorded a revenue 
and expencliture for Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement Board Contributions made by the State of Connecticut on-behalf of the 
Lebanon School Department teachers for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. The pension contributions made by the State are 
determined on an actuarial reserve basis in accordance with 10-183z of the Connecticut General Statutes which reflects public act 
79-436 as amended. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Lebanon Board of Education's total covered payroll was 
approximately $8,181,554 and the applicable on-behalf payment percentage .for the period was 20.54 %. This amount was not 
budgeted for in the general fund and results in a clifference in reporting on a budgetary basis of accounting versus reporting under 
GAAP. An :intergovernmental revenue in the amount of$1,680,491 and an education expenditure of$1,680,491 have been included 
in the general fund on Statement D (GAAP basis) and have not been reported in the detail of Statement E (budgetary basis) of the 
fund financial statements. There is no effect on the fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. An operating grants and contributions 
revenue in the arrtount of $1,680,491 and an expense in the governmental activities section lll1der a separate education function line 
item of $1,680,491 have been included on Statement B of the government-wide financial statements. There is no effect on the net 
asset balance at the end of the fiscal year. The above State funding percentage of 20.54 % compares to 15.90 % during the prior 'fiscal 
year. The above State on-behalf payment of $1,680,491 compares to $1,360,318 'during the prior fiscal year. 
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Munkipal Employees' Retirement System - Fund B 
A. Plan description 

The Connecticut Municipal Employees' Retirement System (CMERS) is a costsharingmultiple employer public employee retirement 
system (PERS) established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State Re'tirement Commission to provide pension 
benefits for the employees of participating municipalities. O\IfERS is considered to be a part of the State of Connecticut's financial 
reporting entity and is included in the State's financial reports as a pension trust fund. PIan provisions are set by stab.Ite of the State 
of C~mnecticut. CMERS provides ,retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. Annual cost of living increases are 
applied to disabled and non-disabled retirement benefits and vary based upon member age and date of retirement. The Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Connecticut Municipal Employees' 
Retirement System, 55 Elm Street - Third Floor, Office of the State Comptroller, Hartford, Connecticut 06106. 

B. Funding policy 

Employees covered by social security are required by State staillte to contribute 2-1/4% of earnings upon which Social Security tax 
is withheld plus 5 % of earnings on which no social security tax is withheld. Employees not covered by social security are required 
to contribute 5% of all earnings. Each covered municipality is required by State staillte to pay an actuarially deternrined percentage 
of covered payroll to provide for benefits based on current service and to finance the remaining costs of the plan. This percentage 
varies by police and fire versus general employees, and within those two groups, for populations covered by social security versus 
those not covered by social security.' The statute also requires each municipality to pay an annual amount for benefits based on 
service prior to the unit's date of participation. This amount is a level dollar amortization (including interest and principal) over 
varying time periods depending upon the unif s date of participation and other factors. The required contribution percentages for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 for the To'WTI are as follows. 

With social security 
Without social security 

C. Contributions required and contributions made 

Police and fire 
employees 

13.75% 
13.50% 

General 
employees 

9.50% 
9.50% 

The To'Wn's total actual contributions for town hall and library covered employees for the years ended June 30~ 2012~ 2011, and 2010 
were $72~720, $53,857~ and$42~609, respectively. These acillal contributions represent 100% of the contributions required to be made. 
These contributions are more fully broken down as follows: 

To'Wn hall and library employees: 2012 2011 2010 

Contributions $ 61,581 $ 42,818 $ 31,770 
Fees 2,000 1,900 1,700 
Amortization 9,139 9,139 9,139 

$ 72,720 $ 53,857 $ 42,609 

The Town's total actual contributions for highway department covered employees for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 
were $58A73, $49,774, and $40,116, respectively. These actual contributions representlOO % of the contributions required to be made. 
These contributions are more fully broken down as follows: 

Highway deparbnent employees: 2012 2011 2010 

Contributions $ 52,761 $ 44,062 $ 34,404 
Fees 1,100 1,100 1,100 
Amortization 4,612 4,612 4,612 

$ 58,473 $ 49,774 $ 40,116 
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D. _ Teachers 
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The Lebanon Board of Education participates in the Connecticut State Teacher's Retirement System which is administered by the 
Teachers' Retirement Board. The provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System are contained in Chapter 167a of the Connecticut 
General Statutes to provide retirement, disability, survivorship and health insurance benefits for Connecticut public school teachers 
and their beneficiaries. Covered employees of the plan include any teacher, principal, superintendent or supervisor engaged in 
service of public schools, plus professional employees at State schools of higher education if they choose to be covered. The benefits 
of the program are funded'by employee contributions, state appropriations and investment income. _The Lebanon Board of 
Education does not contribute to_ the plan. Employees covered by the plan are required to contribute 7.25%of their annual earnings 
into the plan. Of this required employee contribution rate, 6.00% applies to each covered employees pension benefit account with 
the remaining 1.25% being applied to the health insurance fund. The State's required contribution percentage is determined in 
accordance with 10-183z which reflects public act 79-436 as amended. The required contribution percentages to the plan are made 
up of a ,percentage for the normal cost of the plan and a percentage for the unfunded accrued liability of the plan. An actuarial 
valuation of the plan is performed on a bi-annual basis with the most recent valuation being performed as of June 30, 2012. Based 
'on that actuarial valuation, the contribution percentage for the normal cost of the plan was 9.73% and the contribution percentage 
for the accrued liability cost of the plan was 20.40% for a total required ~ontribution percentage of30.13%. The covered employees. 
required contribution percentage was 6.00% leaving the required contribution percentage of the State as 24.13%. Additional 
information on the plan can be obtained from the Teachers' Retirement Board, 765 Asylum Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut 06105. 

Note 13 ~ Other Post Employment Benefits - OPEB 

Government accounting standards board (GASB) Statement No.' s 43 and 45 relate to the accounting and reporting for post­
employment benefits other than pension benefits. The Town was required to implement this standard for the fiscal year beginning 
after December 15, 2007 which would be the Town's fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The objective of Sta~ment No, 43 - Financial 
Reportingfor Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, is to establish uniform standards of financial reporting by-state 
and local governmental entities for other postemployment benefit plans (OPEB plans). OPEB plans are plans that provide post­
employmenthealthcare benefits, either separately or through a defined benefit pension plan. The most common forms ofhealthcare 
benefits are medical, dental and vision. Other examples of benefits which are covered by this statement include life insurance, 
disability and long-term care benefits only when they are provided separately from a defined benefit pension plan. Paragraph 9 
of this statement tells us that OPEB arise from an exchange of salaries and benefits for employee services, and it is part of the 
compensation that employers offer for services received, 

The Board of Education provides a benefit to its employees upon retirement in the form of the ability to be part of the health 
insurance plan while paying the full amount of the premium charged for active employees and receiving no physical subsidy from 
the Schools. Under this Statement, this type of benefit is referred to as an implicit rate subsidy, An implicit rate subsidy exists in 
effect when a health insurance premium rate is made up of age adjusted factors covering a'ctive and retired employees. The health 
insurance premiums which would be charged to a group of solely retirees are most likely larger than those which would be charged 
to a group of solely active employees. When these two groups are merged together, a rate somewhere in the middle is charged to 
all of the employees, whether active or retired, The difference between the premium costs paid by -the employer and what would 
have been paid jf the rates were not blended is considered a non current cost of the employer. The difference between the premium 
costs paid by the retiree and what would have been paid if the rates were not blended is considered a benefit to the retiree. Hence, 
a very simplified description of an implicit rate subsidy. Retired town hall employees are not provided this benefit 

Plan description 

The Board of Education of the Town maintains a single employer defined benefitOPEB·Plan. The Plan provides a benefit for retired 
teachers and administrators in the form of the ability to maintain health insurance coverage through the Plan available to active 
teachers and administrators of the Board of EduG'ation, NC?n-certified Board employees are eligible to participate in the Plan upon 
reaching age 55 with at least 5 years of service or upon 25 years of service. Cafeteria workers are not eligible to participate in the 
plan. Both the refuee and the retiree's spouse are eligible to participate in the plan and they must pay 100% of the cost for medical 
coverage. Anumber of different plan coverages are available, Certified Board employees are eligible to participate in the Plan upon 
reaching age 50 with at least 25 years of service, age 55 with at least 20 years of service or age 60 with at least 10 years of service. 
Both the retiree and the retiree's spouse are eligible to participate in the plan and they must pay 100% of the cost for medical 
coverage. A number of different plan coverages are available. The provisions of the Plan were established by the Board of 
Education along with the respective bargaining units of each group in conjunction with all applicable state statutes. The Plan 
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therefore would be amended through the action of these same groups. These benefits will continue for the life of the retiree once 
they are a part of the Plan. In addition, benefits for a retirees spouse will also continue for the life of the spouse once they are a part 
of the Plan. Surviving spouses are pemritted to continue coverage after the death of the retiree, but are responsible for continuing 
to pay the 'same monthly premium amount or percentage that was being paid while the retiree was alive. The Plan does not issue 
stand-alone financial statement5. 

Funding policy and anoual OPEB cost 

The provisions of the Plan were established by the Board of Education along with the respective bargaining unit<> of each group in 
conjunction with all applicable state statutes. The Board of Education does not contribute directly to this Plan butrather contributes 
in the form of an implicit rate subsidy. Retirees under this Plan are required to pay the full amount of the health insurance 
premiums that are applicable to their particular coverage option. The retiree portion is, however, reduced by an amount contributed 
by the State of State Retirement Board. The current amount contributed by the State for each retire,e is $110 per month for a single 
coverage plan and $220 per monthfor a dual coverage plan. The State can modify the amount contributed at any time in accordance 
with applicable State statutes. 

GASB Statement No. 45 does not mandate that a post-employment benefit liability be pre-funded by an organization it s:iillply 
mandates that the liability be, recorded and that certain related information be disclosed. The Board of Education of the Town 
currently plans to fund these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result, no asset<> of the Town have been segregated and 
restricted to fund or provide these post-employment benefits. The annual required contribution (ARC), which is an actuarial 
determined amount, represents a level amount of funding, which if paid on an ongoing basis, would be projected to cover the 
normal cost each year and to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

The following table represents the OPEB costs for the Town in relation to the Board of Education OPEB plan for the current fiscal 
year and the annual required contribution. 

Funding status 

Nonnal cost 
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
Interest 
Annual requITed contribution (ARC) 

$ 

$ 

156,000 
303,000 

9,000 
468,000 

The Town's annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation as it relates to the OPEB Plan of the Board of Education of the Town 
for the fiscal year ending June 3D, 2012 are as follows. 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 
Interest on beginning NOO (B) at 4.00% 
Adjustroent to ARC beginning NOO (B) divided by 17.98 
Annual OPEB Cost 
Amount contributed 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 

Net OPEB Obligation as of June 30, 2011 (B) 

Net OPEB Obligation as of June 30, 2012 

39 

$ 

$ 

468,000 
34,100 

-47,400 
454,700 

-107,700 

347,000 

852,900 

1,199,900 
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The projections of benefits associated with the Plan are based on the substantive Plan (this is the plan as it is understood by the 
employer and the pian members) and include the types of benefits available at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing the cost 
of these benefits between the Board of Education of the Town and the members of the Plan. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term 
perspective and employ methods and assumptions that ale designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities 
and the actuarial value of plan assets. Significant methods and assumptions made in making the applicable actuarial calculations 
are as follows. 

Actuarial valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
RemainIDg amortization period 

Actuarial assumptions 
Interest 
Projected salary increases 

Healthcare inflation rate 

Schedule of funding progress 

07/01/10 
Projected unit credit 

Level dollal 
30 years 

4.00% 
N/A 

10.00% for 2010, decreasing 1.00% per year to 
an ultimate rate of 5.00% for 2015 and later 

Actuarial valuations involve a number of estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the pIan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revisions based on actual results as compared to past expectations and new estimates based on 
expected future events and conditions. The required schedule of funding progress presented below provides multi-year trend 
information (only one year is currently available) intended to show whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasmg or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial 
Actuarial accrued 

Actuarial value of liability (AAL) 
valuation plan assets entry age 

date (a) (!l) 

07/01/08 $ $ 4,998,000 $ 

07/01/10 $ $ 5,448,000 $ 

Schedule of employer contributions 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(VAAL) 
(a - b) 

4,998,000 

5,448,000 

Funded 
ratio 

(a / b) 

0.00% 

0.00% 

$ 

$ 

UAAL asa 
percentage 

Covered of covered 
payroll payroll 

(c) ((!l-a)/c) 

9,850,000 50.70% 

10,213,000 53.30% 

The follOwing schedule shows the Board of Educations annual OPEB cost, its annual contributions, the percentage of the annual 
OPEB costs contributed and the Net OPEB Obligation. 

Fiscal Annual Percentage NetOPEB 
year OPEB cost Actual ofAOe Obligation 

ending (AOe) contributions contributed (NOO) 

06/30/10 $ 436,000 $ 166,200 38.10% $ 599,900 

"06/30/11 $ 462,000 $ 199,600 38.10% $ 852,900 

06/30/12 $ 468,000 $ 107,700 23.00% $ 1,199,900 
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Note 14 - Commitments and contingencies - Operating leases 

The Town and more specifically the Board of Education of the Town lease a number of photocopiers under a lease agreement which 
is classified as an operating lease. For this lease to be classified as a capital lease it must meet at least one of the following four 
criteria: 1 )The lease passes title to the lessee by the end of the lease term~ 2) the lease contains a bargain purchase option, 3) the lease 
term is at least 75 % of the property's estimated economic life, or 4) the present value of the minimum lease payments is at least 90 % 
of the property's fair value. According to the terms of the lease agreements, the first and second criteria are not met. For criteria 
thIee and four, the estimate is that at th~ end of the lease term the copiers will be refurbished by the lessor and leased in another 
capacity and payment amount to another lessee. This lease agreement is for a period of five years through December of 2013. The 
monWy payment for this lease agreement is $4,015 which equals annual payments of$48,180. The Town and the school department 
have a number of other operating type lease agreements which are no~materiaI innature and therefore have not been included here. 

Note 15 - Risk management, commitments and contingencies - other 

The To'W'll is at risk of loss due to items such as lawsuits, automobile claims, and theft. The Town has purchased commercial 
insurance coverage for any of these types of loss which may occur. The To~ believes the amounts of coverage in force are 
adequate and in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. The To"WTI has not had any significant reductions in 
insurance coverage from the prior fiscal year by major category of risk. The amount qf settlements have not exceeded insurance 
coverage during any of the previous three fiscal years. A lawsuit by two former employees has been filed and is pending in the 
United States District Court for the District of Connecticut against the Board of Education as well as a current member of the 
management of the Board. These lawsuits relate to the terms under which both former employees left the employment of the Board 
and claim that their employment was ended because of their age, alleged disability and gender. The Board intends to vigorously 
defend each of these matters. A conclusion cannot be determined at this time as to the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome In these 
matters and in turn a range of any possible losses relating to these matters can also not be determined at this time. In addition, 
another lawsuit has been brought against the Town relating to the conditions of temrination for an employee who left the 
employment of the Town. The Town is vigorously defending this matter. A conclusion cannot be determined at this time as to the 
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and in turn a range of any possible losses relating to this matter can also not be detemrined 
at this time. 

The Town and the Board of Education have entered into a number of maintenance and service agreements which extend beyond 
the end of the current fiscal year. The Board of Education has entered into a thIee year contract for a working facilities manager 
throughlune 30, 2014 at an annual cost of $145,200, $148,104 and $149,988, respectively. The Board of Education has entered into 
a bus transportation agreement with First Student, fuc. for the purpose of providing transportation services for the school children 
of the Town of Lebanon in compliance with local policies and legal requirements. This agreement runs from July 1, 2008 through 
June 30, 2013. Payment terms are based on specific daily and hourly rates for regular route hours and trips and non-route hours 
and trips. The Town has entered into a two year mowing and trimming contract thIough June 30, 2014 for its recreational fields 
for a total amount of $13,800 plus additional costs for additional services._ The Town has entered into a two year cemetery 
maintenance contract through December 31,2012 at an annual ,rate of $10,800. The Town has entered into a snow removal contract 
thIough April 15, 2013 at a rate of $58,900 to be paid in five equal installments. The Town has entered into a two year lawn care 
maintenance agreement through December 31, 2012 at an annual rate of $21,600. The Town and Board of Education also have a 
number of different construction and other contracts for various projects at various stages of completion. The Town and Board of 
Education also have a number of smaller maintenance and service agreements. These agreements are considered individually 
immaterial. Additional information on these construction contracts and other agreements can be found atthe administrative offices 
of both the Town and the Board of Education. 

The Town participates in numerous Federal and State grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the 
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; 
therefore, to the extent that the Town has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any monies 
received as of and through June 30, 2012 may be impaired. In the opinion of the management of the Town, there are no umecorded 
significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants, therefore, 
no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements for such possible. contingencies. In addition, the 
Town occasionally books unbilled accounts receivable representing earned or recognized grant or contract dollars which have not 
yet been billed or received. Any subsequent modification or amendments to these grants or contracts could result in a loss to the 
Town. However, in the opinion of the management of the Town there are no unrecorded significant contingent liabilities:in regard 
to these unbilled accounts receivable. Any material subsequent modifications or amendments would be shown by the Town as a 
restatement of the prior fiscal year results in which the applicable unbilled receivable had been booked. 
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A prior period adjusbnent was made to the government-wide and the fund financial statements as of June 30, 2011 relating to the 
correction of the manner in which the town accounts for the year end hourly salaries for town hall employees and teachers summer 
salaries for Board of Education employees. The Town had always accounted for these two items on the cash basis posting them 
as expenses to the period in which the amounts were paid rather then the period in which the amounts were earned. This was not 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Town recorded a prior period adjustment in the amount of 
$35,491 as of June 30,2011 for the hourly salaries of town hall employees which had been earned as of June 30, 2011 but which were 
paid during the fustweek of July of 2011. The Town also recorded a prior period adjusbnentin the amount of $1,035,110 as of June 
30,2011 for teacher summer salaries whlchhad been earned as of June 30,2011 but which were'paid durmgJuly and Augustof2011. 
These two adjustment<; increased the recorded liabilities and decrease the general fund balance in the fund financial statements and 
the unrestricted net asset balance in the government-wide financial statement<; by the combined amount of $1,070,601 as of June 
30,2011. There were other related adjustments that needed to be made to the management discussion and analysis section of the 
financial statement<; to implement this and the follovving prior period adjustment. 

A prior period adjustments was also made to the government-wide financial statements as of June 30,2011 relating to the correction 
of the accounting for a copier lease of the Board of Education. The lease was incorrectly classified as an operating lease rather then 
a capital lease in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Town increased the depreciable capital assets 
equipment balance by $62..480 and the related accumulated equipment depreciation by $13,389 for a net increase of $49,091 as of 
lune 30, 2011. The Town also increase the capital lease payable outstanding balance by $45,288 as of lune 30, 2011. These two 
adjustments increased the invested in capital assets, net of related debt net asset balance by $3,803 as of June 30, 2011. 

A prior period adjustment was also made to the government-wide financial statements as of June 30, 2011 relating to the omission 
of the capital assets of the discretely presented component unit which are required to be recorded in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Depreciable capital assets, net of the accumulated depreciation were added in the amount of 
$190,748 which increased the invested in capital assets, net of related debt net asset balance by $190,748 as of June 30, 2011. 

Note 17 - New accounting pronouncements 

The Government Accounting Standards Board issues authoritative pronouncements that address certain accounting application 
and reporting practices of governmental entities. The following two pronouncements are applicable to the Town. The GASB has 
issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity; Omnibus. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 
15,2012. This statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity and other 
related requirements. The effects of the :implementation of this new statement will be seen, when applicable, within the financial 
statements of the Town for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. The GASB has issued Statement No. 62, Codification oj AccoUnting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 F ASB and AlCP A Pronouncements. This statement is effective for 
fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The objective of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB's authoritative 
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the aforementioned F ASB and AICPA 
pronouncements. The effects of the implementation of this new statement will be seen, when applicable, within the financial 
statements of the Town for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 

Note 18 ~ Subsequent events 

The Town entered into a bond anticipation note agreement on October 3, 2012 in the amount of $6,433,000. The proceeds of this 
loan were used to repay a previous bond anticipation note in the amount of $5,100,000 relating to the Amston Lake sewer 
construction project which is being accounted for vvithin the town construction projects major fund in the Town's financial 
statements. Under this bond anticipation note agreement, the entire principal amount plus interest at .50% is due on January 17, 
2013. On lanuary 17, 2013 the Town received a grant in the amount of $1,445,000 and a loan in the amount of $5,105,000 from the 
United States Department of Agriculture - Rural Development. The proceeds from this grant and loan were used to repay the 
aforementioned bond anticipation agreement and represent the long-term funding of the Amston Lake sewer construction project. 
This loan is payable in annual installments representing principal and interest in the amount of $203,384 starting January 17, 2014 
and ending January 17, 2052 with a final principal and interest amount of $202,034 payable on January 17, 2053. The interest rate 
on this loan is 2.50%. In addition, the Town entered into a capital lease purchase agreement on October 9, 2012 in the amount of 
$180,446. This lease was for the purchase of three public works vehicles. Monthly payments under this lease are $5,000 starting 
on October 15, 2012 and ending December 15, 2015. The interest rate on this capital lease is 3.65%. The Town has evaluated 
subsequent events through January 21, 2013, the date to which the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Schedule A 
Town of Lebanon~ Connecticut 

Combirring Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major governmental funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Non-major Non-major Non-major 
special revenue capital project permanent 

funds funds funds Totals 
Assets 
Cash $ 380,353 $ $ 9,512 $ 389,865 
Investments 322,615 322,615 
Accounts and other receivables 730,152 5,962 736,114 
fuventories and prepaid items 11,729 11,729 
Due from other funds 796,387 54,925 851,312 
Total assets 1,918,621 60,887 332,127 2,311,635 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 41,706 41,706 
Other liabilities 24,800 5,962 108 30,870 
Due to other funds 218,488 58,440 7,996 284,924 
Total liabilities 284,994 64,402. 8,104 357,500 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 6,311 322,270 328,581 
Restricted 1,=,650 1,753 1,224,403 
Committed 358,022 54,084 412,106 
Assigned 75,377 75,377 
Unassigned -28,733 -57,599 -86,332 
Total fund balance 1,633,627 -3,515 324,023 1,954,135 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,918,621 $ 60,887 $ 332,127 $ 2,311,635 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ 364,181 $ 9,477 $ $ 373,658 
Intergovernmental revenues 1,494,807 181,667 1,676,474 
Interest and dividends 290 911 1,201 
Charges for services 327,379 327,379 
:Miscellaneous 407,384 407,384 
Total revenues 2,594,041 191,144 911 2,786,096 

Expendihll'es 
Salary and wages 986,243 986,243 
Program operating costs 1,482,709 186,955 233 1,669,897 
Capital expenditures 225,000 19,828 244,828 
Total expendihues 2,693,952 206,783 233 2,900,968 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expendihlIes -99,911 -15,639 678 -114,872 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 212,221 1,683 213,904 
Transfers out -193 -193 

Total oilier financing sources (uses) 212,221 1,490 213,711 

Net change in fund balance 112,310 -15,639 2,168 98,839 

Fund balance - July 1 1,521,317 12,124 321,855 1,855,296 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 1,633,627 $ -3,515 $ 324,023 $ 1,954,135 

43 



Schedule B 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major special revenue funds 

As of and for !he year ended June 30, 2012 

Lebanon Lehanon Jonathan Adams Town Senior 
public recreation Trumbull Jr. commuirity improvement vans 
library commission house center Ero~am :erogam 

Assets 
Cash $ $ $ 39,389 $ $ $ 421 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 12,579 1,= 2,032 5,958 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 78,482 54,758 1,154 32,032 54,093 102,951 
Total assets 91,061 54,758 41,765 34,064 54,093 109,330 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 5,669 3,711 446 1,110 316 1,324 
Other liabilities 5,970 4,127 322 2,000 2,054 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 11,639 7,838 768 1,110 2,316 3,378 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 79,422 46,920 40,997 32,954 51,777 105,952 
Assigned 
Unassigned 
Total fund balance 79,422 46,920 40,997 32,954 51,777 105,952 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 91,061 $ 54,758 $ 41,765 $ 34,064 $ 54,093 $ 109,330 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ 238,431 $ 32,500 $ $ 100 $ 10,000 $ 63,000 
Intergovernmental revenues 2,218 23,831 
Interest and dividends 100 
Charges for services 53,337 2,850 4,205 
Miscellaneous 85,255 16,269 
Total revenues 325,904 85,837 16,369 2,950 10,000 91,036 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 164,284 31,891 5,716 37,811 
Program operating costs 147,713 41,763 38,848 19,031 21,732 32,751 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 311,997 73,654 44,564 19,031 21,732 70,562 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 13,907 12,183 -28,195 -16,081 -11,732 20,474 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 35,131 12,370 19,720 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 35,131 12,370 19,720 

Net change in fund balance 49,038 12,183 -15,825 3,639 -11,732 20,474 

Fund balance - July 1 30,384 34,737 56,822 29,315 63,509 85,478 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 79,422 $ 46,920 $ 40,997 $ 32,954 $ 51,777 $ 105,952 
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Schedule B (continued) 
Town of Lebanon .. Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major spedal revenue funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Lebanon Trumbull School Historic Locip Housing 
dog donations lunch document surcharge rehab 
fund fund ETogam Ereservation assessment income 

Ass"ets 
Cash $ $ $ 53,365 $ $ $ 23,948 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 18,307 639,203 
Inventories and prepaid items 11,729 
Due from other funds 2,817 242,923 3,743 14,047 32,647 
Total assets 2,817 242,923 87,144 14,047 32,647 663,151 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 180 
Other liabilities 5,418 
Due to other funds 3,588 
Tolalliabilities 180 9,006 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 6,311 
Restricted 242,923 71,827 14,047 32,647 663,151 
Committed 
Assigned 2,637 
Unassigned 
Tolal fund balance 2,637 242,923 78,138 14,047 32,647 663,151 

Tolalliabilities and fund balance $ 2,817 $ 242,923 $ 87,144 $ 14,047 $ 32,647 $ 663,151 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ 17,000 $ $ $ $ $ 
httergovernmental revenues 122,356 3,500 
Interest and dividends 69 
Charges for services 6,665 246,877 2,781 4,164 
Miscellaneous 6,617 127,389 
Total revenues 23,665 375,919 6,281 4,164 127,389 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 18 227,449 
Program operating costs 19,175 1,040 150,812 7,449 50,209 
Capital expendihlres 
Total expenditures 19,193 1,040 378,261 7,449 50,209 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 4,472 -1,040 -2,342 -1,168 4,164 77,180 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 4,472 -1,040 -2,342 -1,168 4,164 77,180 

Fund balance - July 1 -1,835 243,963 80,480 15,215 28,483 585,971 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 2,637 $ 242,923 $ 78,138 $ 14,047 $ 32,647 $ 663,151 
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Schedule B (continued) 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures ,and changes in fund balances - Non-major special revenue funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Housing Village Survey Unimproved Agriculture Agriculture 
rehab center planning town roads viability viability 
~ant 8"!ant ~ant g!ant ~ant ~ant 

Assets 
Cash $ 18,258 $ $ $ $ $ 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 6,742 6,350 9,771 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 11,362 62,302 1,040 
Total assets 25,000 17,712 9,771 62,302 1,040 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 7,100 17,712 362 
Other liabilities 
Due to other funds 17,900 9,772 
Total liabilities 25,000 17,712 9,772 362 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 61,940 1,040 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned -1 

Total fund balance -1 61,940 1,040 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 25,000 $ 17,712 $ 9,771 $ 62,302 $ 1,040 $ 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 187,742 19,771 49,034 24,808 
Interest and dividends 
~rges for services 
Miscellaneous 50,000 
Total revenues 187,742 50,000 19,772 49,034 24,808 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 190,434 50,000 19,772 43,261 11,963 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 190,434 50,000 19,772 43,261 11,963 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures -2,692 -1 5,773 12,845 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance -2,692 -1 5,773 12,845 

Fund balance - July 1 2,692 56,167 1,040 -12,845 

Fund balance - June 30 $ $ $ -1 $ 61,940 $ 1,040 $ 
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Schedule B (continued) 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

CombiIring Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues? 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major special revenue funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Energy Emergency Fema Equipment State aid Vo-ag 
efficiency management storm training drug abuse equipment 
~ant ~ant S!ants ~ant ~ant l2:ant 

Assets 
Cash $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 20,073 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 1,545 48,869 255 628 
Total assets 20,073 1,545 48,869 255 628 

Uabilities 
Accounts payable 72 
Other liabilities 
Due to other funds 20,073 27,749 
Total liabilities 20,073 72 27,749 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 1,473 255 628 
Committed 
Assigned 48,869 
Unassigned -27,749 
Total fund balance 1,473 48,869 255 628 -27,749 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 20,073. $ 1,545 $ 48,869 $ 255 $ 628 $ 

Revenues 
PropertY tax revenues $ $ 3,150 $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 29,701 2,669 71,320 
Interest and dividends 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 4,240 
T ota! revenues 29,701 5,819 75,560 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 3,229 
Program operating costs 20,073 1,765 26,691 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 20,073 4,994 26,691 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 9,628 825 48,869 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 9,628 825 48,869 

Fund balance - July 1 -9,628 648 255 628 -27,749 

Fund balance - June 30 $ $ 1,473 $ 48,869 $ 255 $ 628 $ -27,749 
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Schedule B (continued) 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major special revenue funds 

As of and for the year ended lune 30, 2012 

Warm Senior Mise Summ.er Cemetery Historic 
donations donations donations dance fest lots buildings 

fund fund fund fund fund fund 
Assets 
Cash $ $ $ $ $ 38,073 $ 10,123 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 24,566 8,214 5,043 12,916 

Total assets 24,566 8,214 5,043 12,916 38,073 10,123 

Liabilities 
Account5 payable 225 64 300 
Other liabilities 
Due to other funds 37,241 
Total liabilities 225 64 300 37,241 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 24,341 8,150 4,743 
Committed 
Assigned 12,916 832 10,123 
Unassigned 
Total fund balance 24,341 8,150 4,743 12,916 832 10,123 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 24,566 $ 8,214 $ 5,043 $ 12,916 $ 38,073 $ 10,123 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 96 25 
Charges for services 4,100 2,400 
Miscellaneous 12,069 5,859 700 11,298 
Total revenues 12,069 5,859 4,800 11,298 2,496 25 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 2,990 7,419 2,076 11,048 6,000 
Capital expenditures 225,000 
T ota! expenditures 2,990 7,419 2,076 11,048 231,000 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 9,079 -1,560 2,724 250 -228,504 25 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 145,000 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 145,000 

Net change in fund balance 9,079 -1,560 2,724 250 -83,504 25 

Fund balance - luly 1 15,262 9,710 2,019 12,666 84,336 10,098 

Fund balance - lune 30 $ 24,341 $ 8,150 $ 4,743 $ 12,916 $ 832 $ 10,123 
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Schedule B (continued) 
Town of Lebanon~ Connecticut ' 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major special revenu~ funds 

As of and for fhe year ended June 30, 2012 

LES LMS LHS Special ed School 
activity activity activity excess costs educational 

accounts accounts accounts ~ant ~ants Totals 
Assds 
Cash $ 15,884 $ 30,908 $ 29,505 $ $ 120,479 $ 380,353 
Invesbnents 
Accounts and other receivables 7,915 730,152 
Inventories and prepaid items 11,729 
Due from other funds 796,387 
Total assets 15,884 30,908 29,505 128,394 1,918,621 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 3,115 41,706 
Other liabilities 4,909 24,800 
Due to other funds 102,165 218,488 
Total liabilities 110,189 284,994 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 6,311 
Restricted 15,884 30,908 29,505 19,188 1,222,650 
Committed 358,022 
Assigned 75,377 
Unassigned -983 -28,733 
Total fund balance 15,884 30,908 29,505 18,205 1,633,627 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 15,884 $ 30,908 $ 29,505 $ $ 128,394 $ 1,918,621 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 364,181 
Intergovernmental revenues 332,167 625,690 1,494,807 
Interest and dividends 290 
Charges for services 327,379 
:Miscellaneous 6,610 20,232 47,648 13,198 407,384 
Total revenues 6,610 20,232 47,648 332,167 638,888 2,594,041 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 515,845 986,243 
Program operating costs 11,718 18,026 34,990 332,167 161,793 1,482,709 
Capital expenditures 225,000 
Total expenditures 11,718 18,026 34,990 332,167 677,638 2,693,952 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures -5,108 2,206 12,658 -38,750 -99,911 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 212,221 
Transfers out 

Total other financing SOUIces (uses) 212,221 

Net change in fund balance -5,108 2,206 12,658 -38,750 112,310 

Fund balance - July 1 20,992 28,702 16,847 56,955 1,521,317 

Fund ba~ance - June 30 $ 15,884 $ 30,908 $ 29,505 $ $ 18,205 $ 1,633,627 
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Schedule C 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances- Non-major capital project funds 

Asof and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Lake Town Alden DOT fix it Tyler field 
Williams bridge tavern first bridge project 
rroject ~ants ~ant ~ant ~ant Totals 

Assets 
Cash $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 5,962 5,962 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 54,084 54,925 

Total assets 60,046 60,887 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Other liabilities 5,962 5,962 
Due to other funds 33,820 92 24,528 58,440 
Total liabilities 5,962 33,820 92 24,528 64,402 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 54,084 54,084 
Assigned 
Unassigned -32,979 -92 -24,528 -57,599 
Total fund balance 54,084 -32,979 -92 -24,528 -3,515 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 60,046 $ 841 $ $ $ $ 60,887 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ 9,477 $ $ $ $ $ 9,477 
IntergoveITlll1ental revenues 1,543 17,697 162,427 181,667 
Interest and dividends 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 9,477 1,543 17,697 162,427 191,144 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 186,955 186,955 
Capital 'expenditures 4,579 15,249 19,828 
Total expenditures 4,579 15,249 186,955 206,783 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 9,477 1,543 -4,579 2,448 -24,528 -15,639 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 9,477 1,543 -4,579 2,448 -24,528 -15,639 

Fund balance - July 1 44,607 -34,522 4,579 -2,540 12,124 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 54,084 $ -32,979 $ $ -92 $ -24,528 $ -3,515 
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Schedule D 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major permanent funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

George Cemetery Helen Waterman Flora 
Cummings Lyman perpetual Rodgers Wilson Williams 
scholarshiE fund? care scholarshiE libral}' fund libral}' fund 

Assets 
Cash $ 6 $ 2 $ $ 1 $ $ 
Investments 197,132 47,726 11,740 10,004 9,189 7,823 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 197,138 47,728 11,740 10,005 9,189 7,823 

Liabilities, 
Accounts payable 
Other liabilities 93 5 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 93 5,023 1,199 5 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 197,045 42,705 10,541 10,000 8,360 7,000 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 
Total fund balance 197,045 42,705 10,541 10,000 8,360 7,000 

Total Iiabilities and fund balance $ 197,138 $ 47,728 $ 11,740 $ 10,005 $ 9,189 $ 7,823 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 201 49 12 10 117 8 
Net change in invesbnent fair value 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 201 49 12 10 117 8 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 201 10 
Capital expenditures 
Total expendihIIes 201 10 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expendihIres 49 12 117 8 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 1,291 75 
Transfers out -49 -12 -117 -8 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,291 -49 -12 75 -117 -8 

Net change in fund balance 1,291 75 

Fund balance - July 1 195,754 42,705 10,541 9,925 8,360 7,000 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 197,045 $ 42,075 $ 10,541 $ 10,000 $ 8,360 $ 7,000 
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Schedule D (continued) 
Town of Lebanon.. Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major permanent funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Town Lebanon RoyalO. Dorothy Elizabeth ELReichard 
deposit school Woodard Hinckley Grant nursing 

fond Erizes scholarshiE scholarshiE scholarshiE scholarshiE 
Assets 
Cash $ 6,566 $ $ $ $ $ 
Investments 6,403 6,053 6,044 4,287 3,001 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other fonds 
Total assets 6,566 6,403 6,053 6,044 4,287 3,001 

liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Other liabilities 3 3 2 1 
Due to other funds 4 
Tolalliabilities 4 3 3 2 1 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 6,562 6,400 6,050 5,000 4,285 3,000 
Restricted 1,044 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 
T olal fond balance 6,562 6,400 6,050 6,044 4,285 3,000 

Tota11iabilities and fund balance $ 6,566 $ 6,403 $ 6,053 $ 6,044 $ 4,287 $ 3,001 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 3 7 6 20 4 3 
Net change in investment fair value 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 3 7 6 20 4 3 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 7 6 4 3 
Capital expenditures 
Total expendihlTes 7 6 4 3 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 3 20 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers m 99 49 36 113 
Transfers out -3 

Total other financing sources (uses) -3 99 49 36 113 

Net change in fund balance 99 49 20 36 113 

Fund balance - July 1 6,562 6,301 6,001 6,024 4,249 2,887 

Fund balance ~ June 30 $ 6,562 $ 6,400 $ 6,050 $ 6,044 $ 4,285 $ 3,000 

52 



Schedule D (continued) 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Non-major permanent funds 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Flora Local Vernon William Oliver & 
Williams school Boothby Taylor Lucille 

scholarshiE fund libr~ cemete!Y Marming Totals 
Assets 
Cash $ $ 1,937 $ 1,000 $ $ $ 9,512 
Invesbnents 2,001 1,118 10,094 322,615 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 2,001 1,937 1,000 1,118 10,094 332,127 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Other liabilities 1 108 
Due to other funds 118 7,996 
Total liabilities 1 118 8,104 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 2,000 1,937 1,000 1,000 9,385 322,270 
Restricted 709 1,753 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 
Total fund balance 2,000 1,937 1,000 1,000 10,094 324,023 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 2,001 $ 1,937 $ 1,000 $ 1,118 $ 10,094 $ 332,127 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 2 2 1 1 325 771 
Net change in investment fair value 140 140 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 2 2 1 1 465 911 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
ProgTam operating costs 2 233 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 2 233 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 2 1 1 465 678 

Other finandng sources (uses) 
Transfers in 20 1,683 
Transfers out -2 -1 -1 -193 

Total other financing sources (uses) 20 -2 -1 -1 1,490 

Net change in fund balance 20 465 2,168 

Fund balance - July 1 1,980 1,937 1,000 1,000 9,629 321,855 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 2,000 $ 1,937 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 10,094 $ 324,023 

53 



Schedule E 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Statement of fiduciary net assets. and Statement 
of changes in fiduciary net assets - Private purpose trusts 

As of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 

Jared Kalmon Mary Robert L. Richard 
Hinckley Kurdnik Chase Hanover Woyasz 

scholarshil' scholarshiE fund scholarshiE scholarshi:e 
Assets 
Cash $ $ $ 7,972 $ $ 
Investments 50,002 8,884 1,814 1,184 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 50,002 8,884 7,972 1,814 1,184 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Other liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Restricted 

Expendable 50,002 8,884 7,972 1,814 1,184 
Non-expendable 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 50,002 8,884 7,972 1,814 1,184 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 50,002 $ 8,884 $ 7,972 $ 1,814 $ 1,184 

Additions: 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 317 31 15 7 16 
Net change in investment fair value 
Miscellaneous 

Total additions 317 31 15 7 16 

Deductions: 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 325 350 350 201 
Capital expenditures 
Total deductions 325 350 350 201 

Change in net assets -8 -319 . 15 -343 -185 

Net assets - July 1 50,010 9,203 7,957 2,157 1,369 

Net assets - June 30 $ 50,002 $ 8,884 $ 7,972 $ 1,814 $ 1,184 
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Schedule E (continued) 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Statement of fiduciary net assets and Statement 
of changes in fiduciary net assets - Private purpose trusts 

As of and for t;he year ended June 30, 2012 

Flegert Nichols Town 
Ausberger Trahan school 

libralJ:: scholarshiE Erizes Totals 
Assets 
Cash $ 2,456 $ $ 1,776 $ 12,204 
Invesbnents 8,789 70,673 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 2,456 8,789 1,776 82,877 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Other liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Restricted 
Expendable 2,456 8,789 1,776 82,877 
Non-expendable 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 2,456 8,789 1,776 82,877 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,456 $ 8,789 $ 1,776 $ 82,8?7 

Additions: 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 2 22 3 413 
Net change in invesbnent fair value 
Miscellaneous 
Total additions 2 22 3 413 

Deductions: 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 2 500 1,728 
Capital expenditures 
Total deductions 2 500 1,728 

Change in net assets -478 3 -1,315 

Net assets - July 1 2,456 9,267 1,773 84,192 

Net assets - June 30 $ 2,456 $ 8,789 $ 1,776 $ 82,877 
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Sub-Schedule A 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - Town construction projects 

As of and for fue year ended lune 30, 2012 

LES LMS Fire Senior Amston 
buildJng· buildJng .safety center lake sewer 
Eroject Eroject com:e1ex comrlex rroject Totals 

Assets 
Cash $ $ $ $ $ 2,589,214 $ 2,589,214 
Investments 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 192,020 11,641 18,530 222,191 

Total-assets 192,020 11,641 2,607,744 2,811,405 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 697,509 697,509 
Due to other funds 585,232 1,894 587,126 
Total liabilities 585,232 1,894 697,509 1,284,635 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 192,020 11,641 1,910,235 2,113,896 
Assigned 
Unassigned -585,232 -1,894 -587,126 
Total fund balance -585,232 192,020 11,641 -1,894 1,910,235 1,526,770 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ $ 192,020 $ 11,641 $ $ 2,607,744 $ 2,811,405 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 381,672 381,672 
Interest and dividends 9,435 9,435 
Charges for services 18,530 18,530 
1vfiscellaneous 29,786 29,786 

Total revenues 381,672 57,751 439,423 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 2,346 2,349 4,698 
Capital expenditures 2,862,161 2,862,161 

Total expenditures 2,349 2,349 2,862,161 2,866,859 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expendihlres -2,349 379,323 -2,804,410 -2,427,436 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from debt issuance 5,100,000 5,100,000 
Transfers in 350,000 350,000 
Transfers out -750,000 -750,000 

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,700,000 4,700,000 

Net change in fund balance -2,349 379,323 1,895,590 2,272,564 

Fund balance - July 1 -582,883 -187,303 11,641 -1,894 14,645 -745,794 

Fund balance - lune 30 $ -585,232 $ 192,020 $ 11,641 $ -1,894 $ 1,910,235 $ 1,526,770 
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Sub-Schedule B 
Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Combining Balance sheet and combining Statement of revenues" 
expendihrres and changes in fund balances - Trumbull Investments fund 

As of and for fbe year ended June 30, 2012 

Jonafban Adams Jonathan 
Trumbull Jr. community TrumbullJr. 
library fund center fund house fund Totals 

Assets 
Cash $ $ $ $ 
Investments 970,693 595,339 382,553 1,948,585 
Accounts and other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid items 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 970,693 595,339 382,553 1,948,585 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Ofber liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 970,693 595,339 382,553 1,948,585 
Committed 
Assigned-
Unassigned 
Total fund balance 970,693 595,339 382,553 1,948,585 

T otalliabilities and fund balance $ 970,693 $ 595,339 $ 382,553 $ 1,948,585 

Revenues 
Property tax revenues $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest and dividends 35,006 19,465 12,370 66,841 
Net change in investment fair value 50,028 40,467 8,328 98,823 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 85,034 59,932 20,698 165,664 

Expenditures 
Salary and wages 
Program operating costs 65 65 65 195 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 65 65 65 195 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 84,969 59,867 20,633 165,469 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out -35,006 -19,720 -12,370 -67,096 

Total other financing sources (uses) -35,006 -19,720 -12,370 -67,096 

Net change in fund balance 49,963 40,147 8,263 98,373 

Fund balance - July 1 920,730 555,192 374,290 1,850,212 

Fund balance - June 30 $ 970,693 $ 595,339 $ 382,553 $ 1,948,585 
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Uncollected 
Grand taxes 

list 06(30(11 

2010 $ $ 
2009 286,693 
2008 90,402 
2007 19,191 
2006 13,022 
2005 6,589 
2004 1,728 
2003 688 
2002 249 
2001 154 
2000 148 
1999 42 
1998 71 
1997 71 
1996 75 

$ 419,123 $ 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of property taxes levied, 

collections, and outstanding balances 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Current Lawful corrections 
year 

taxes levied Additious Deductions 

15,076,367 $ 13,939 $ -31,662 
3,460 -20,058 
2,064 -6,746 

229 

15,076,367 $ 19,692 $ -58,466 
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Sub-Schedule C 

Net 
taxes 

collectable 

$ 15,058,644 
270,095 

85,720 
19,420 
13,022 

6,589 
1,728 

688 
249 
154 
148 
42 
71 
71 
75 

$ 15,456,716 



Grand 
list 

2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 
2000 
1999 
1998 
1997 
1996 

$ 

$ 

Town of Lebanon~ Connecticut 
Schedule of property taxes levied~ 

collections, and outstanding balances 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Collections during the fiscal year 
Lien 

Taxes Interest fees Total 

14,7l8,842 $ 62,325 $ 8,851 $ 14,790,018 
170,184 41,634 1,686 213,504 

51,055 18,136 2,909 72,100 
11,225 6,601 90 17,916 

7,942 5,252 318 13,512 
5,181 4,578 460 10,219 

935 14 24 973 

14,965,364 $ 138,540 $ 14,338 $ 15,118,242 

Sub-Schedule C (continued) 

Uncollected 
taxes 

Adjustments 06/30/12 

$ $ 339,802 
99,911 

-22,039 12,626 
8,195 
5,080 
1,408 

793 
688 
249 
154 
148 

42 
7l 
71 
75 

$ -22,039 $ 469,313 

A This schedule is in effect designed to be shown on the cash basis of accounting whereas it shows the amount 
being received against tax years as revenues when in effect they represent a reduction in the asset accountfor 
each outstanding tax year. As a result, the total collections balance shown above will not tie out to the 
property taxes, interest, and liens revenue balance on StatementD, StatementE, or Sub-Schedule D. However, 
the following is a reconciliation of selected balances from this schedule to the amount shown on Statement 
D, Statement E, and Sub-Schedule D. . 

$ 15,076,367 
138,540 

10,339 
14,338 
12,770 

-22,039 
-38,774 
-29,394 

15,162,147 
9,477 

$ 15,17l,624 

Current year taxes levied from page 58 
Tax interest collections during the current fiscal year from above 
Suspense interest collections during the current fiscal year 
Tax lien fee collections during the current fiscal year from above 
Suspense principle balance collections during the current fiscal year 
Account balances transferred to suspense during the current fiscal year from above 
The net lawful corrections made during the current fiscal year from page 58 
The deferred tax revenue adjustment made as described in item number 2 on page 15 

Property taxes, interest, and liens per Statement E 
Lake Williams assessment principal and interest collections 

Property taxes, interest, and liens per Statement D and Sub-Schedule D 

B Operation of Law - No tax can be collected 15 years after the original due date. 

C Taxes transferred (to) and from suspense. Though tax balances are transferred from active status to suspense 
status they remain collectible. During the current fiscal year $12,770 was collected on principle suspense tax 
balances owed and $10,339 of interest was collected on principle suspense tax balances owed. A certificate 
of correction was completed for taxes which had already been transferred to suspense during the current 
fiscal year in the amount of a $64 decrease. One suspense tax year was affected by this correction. 

59 



Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of debt limitation 

Connecticut General Statutes, Section 7-374 (b) 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Total tax collections (including interest and lien fees)"for the current fiscal year. 

Total tax collections (including interest and lien fees) of city, borough and all other 
taxing districts within the Town for the current fiscal year. 

Reimbursement for revenue loss on: Tax relief for the elderly - (CGS 12-129d) 

Total base 

General 
Debt limitation: EUIQoses Schools Sewers 

21/4 times base $ 34,479,452 $ $ 
4 Yz times base 68,958,605 
3 3/4 times base 57,465,754 
3 1/4 times base 
3 times base 

Total debt limitation 34,479,452 68,958,605 57,465,754 

Indebtedness: 

Bonds payable 1,013,018 2,614,400 
Bond anticipation notes payable 5,100,000 
Bonds authorized and unissued 630,000 8,296,724 1,450,000 
Notes paY'lble 
Capilalleases payable 33,117 
Accrued compensated absences: 

School employees 66,321 
Town employees 28,311 

Accrued post cl-0sure landfill costs 89,131 

Total indebtedness 1,760,460 11,010,562 6,550,000 

Debt limitation in excess of 
outstanding and authorized debt $ 32,718,992 $ 57,948,043 $ 50,915,754 

Sub-Schedule D 

$ 15,171,624 

123,589 

28,988 

$ 15,324,201 

Urban Pension 
renewal deficit 

$ $ 

49,803,653 
45,972,603 

49,803,653 45,972,603 

$ 49,803,653 $ 45,972,603 

Note: In no case shall total indebtedness exceed seven times annual receipts from taxation. The maximum amount permitted 
under this formula would be $107,269,407 which is well above the $19,321,022 current amount of outstanding and authorized 
and unissued debt of the Town. The authorized but unissued bond amount5 relating to the school as of June 3D, 2012 are made 
up of $964,150 for middle school boiler replacement and heating systemrenovatiollS, $360,000 for improvements to various school 
facilities and $6,972,574 for the elementary and middle school projects. The authorized but unissued bond amounts relating to 
general purpose items as of June 30, 2012 equal $630,000 for the fire safety complex. The authorized and unissued bond amounts 
relating to sewers as of June 30, 2012 relate to the Amston Lake Sewer project. ,These authorized and unissued bond amounts have 
been included above due to the fact that the Town's interpretation that the reasons for excluding certain types of debt from 
inclusion in this schedule as outlined in the Connecticut General Statues Section 7-37 4(b), do not apply to these items of authorized 
and unissued bond amounts. The taxing districts witlrin the Town include the Amston Lake Tax District and the Lake Williams 
Beach Association. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

For the year ended lune 30, 2012 

Federal grantor 
Pass-through grantor 
Pro!2:am title 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Passed through the State of Connecticut-
Department of Education 
Child nutrition cluster: 

School breakfast program 

School lunch program 

School milk program 

Supplemental nutrition assistance program 

u.s. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Passed through the State of Connecticut-
Department of Economic and Community Development 
Small cities program -

Housing rehabilitation loan program 

u.s. Department of Transportation 
Highway Planning and Construction Ouster: 
Passed through the State of Connecticut­

DeparanentofTransporlation 
Highway planning and construction 

Capital assistance program for elderly persons 
and persons with disabilities 

u.s. Department of Energy_ 
Passed through the State of Connecticut­
Department of Environmental Protection 
ARRA Energy efficiency and conservation block grant 

u.s. Department of Education 
Passed through the State of Connecticut­
Department of Education 
Title I Part A Ouster: 
Title I - Improving basic programs 

Federal Pass-through 
CFDA grantor 

number number 

10.553 12060-SDE64370-20508-2011 
12060-SDE64370-20508-2012 

10.555 12060-SDE64370-20560-2011 
12060-SDE64370-20560-2012 

10.556 12060-SDE64370-20500-2011 
12060-SDE64370-205QO-2012 

10.580 12060-SDE64351-26130-2011 

14.228 12060-ECD46350-20730-2012 

20.205 12062-DOT57191-22108-2012 

20.513 12062-DOT57931-21361-2012 

81.128 12060-DEP44720-29009-2012 

84.010 12060-SDE64370-20679-2012 
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Federal 
eXEenditures 

$ 4,092 
11.505 

21.332 
56,364 

280 
1,116 

94,689 

950 

190,434 

1.542 

40,000 

20,073 

54,860 



Town of Lebanon.. Connecticut 
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards (continued) 

For the year ended lune 30, 2012 

Federal grantor 
Pass-through grantor 
Program title 

u.s. Department of Education 
Passed through the State of Connecticut-

Department of Education 
Special Education Ouster 

Idea Part B - Section 611 Disabilities 

Idea Part B - Section 619 Preschool 

Title II Part A - Improving teacher quality 

Education jobs fund 

Passed through the State of Connecticut-
DeparhnentofEducation 
Passed through Eastconn 

Carl D. Perkins vocational & technology 
education act consortium grant 

u.s. Department of Homeland Security 
Passed through the State of Connecticut­

Department of Emergency 
Services & Public Protection 

Disaster grants - public assistance 

u.s. Department of Homeland Security 
Passed through the State of Connecticut­

Department of Emergency Management 
and Homeland Security 
Emergency management performance grant 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Federal 
CFDA 

number 

84.027 

84.173 

84.367 

84.410 

84.048 

97.036 

97.042 
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Pass-through 
grantor 
number 

12060-SDE64370-20977-2011 
12060-SDE64370-20977-2012 
12060-SDE64370-20977-2012 
12060-SDE64370-20983-2012 

12060-SDE64370-20858-2011 
12060-SDE64370-20858-2012 

12060-SDE64370-22405-2012 

12060-DPS32985-21891-2011 
12060-DPS32985-21891-2012 

12060-DPS32982-21881-2010 

Federal 
eXEenditures 

$ 

$ 

72,351 
112,033 
10,000 
10,150 

204;534 

25,565 
769 

26,334 

252,544 

10,213 

20,998 
50,323 
71,321 

2,669 

970,163 



Note 1- Basis of presentation 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

June 30, 2012 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant and contract activity of the Town of 
Lebanonr Connecticut and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133r Audits ajStates, Local Govemmentsr and Non-Profit Organizations. Thereforer 

some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation ot the basic financial 
statements. The expenditure amounts shown on the accompanying schedule may include reimbursable expenditures which have 
been incurred by the Town and therefore included as expenditures but which have not yet been reimbursed and are considered and 
may be recorded as accounts receivable. In accordance with OMB Circular A-133 section §_.205 (a), the_ determination of when 
an award is expended should be based on when the activity related to the award occurs. 
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Board of Finance 
Board of Selectmen 

Stephen T. Hopkins, CPA, PC 
Auditing, Accounting, and Consulting Services 

214 Holmes Road/ Scarborough, Maine 04074/Phone; (207) 885 - 5038/ Fax; (207) 470 - 5050 

mdependent Auditors' Report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements 

performed in accordance -with Government Auditing Standards 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, 
which collectively comprise the Town of Lebanon, Cormecticut's financial statement5 and have issued our report thereon dated 
January 21, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. 

Internal control over financial reporting 

Management of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit we considered the Town of Lebanon, Connecticutts internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing OUI opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticuf s internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Lebanon, 
Connecticuf s internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we considered to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemalcontrol such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We do not 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We do consider the deficiencies described 
in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. These significant deficiencies are noted 
in the aforementioned schedule as item numbers 12-01 through 12-05. 

Compliance and other matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Lebanon, Connecticutts financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statementamounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisioD5 was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no reportable instances of noncompliance or other matters required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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The Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's responses to the findings identified in our audit are descnbed in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's responses and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on them. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, the Board of Selectmen, the Board 
of Education, others within the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended· to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Stephen T. Hopkins, CPA, PC 

. Vc;;~T~, 
January 21, 2013 

CrlA PC ( . 
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Board of Finance 
Board of Selectmen 

Stephen T. Hopkins, CPA, PC 
Auditing, Accounting, and Consulting Services 

214 Holmes Road/ Scarborough, Maine 04074/ Phone: (207) 885 - 5038/ Fax: (207) 470 - 5050 

Independent Auditors' Report on compliance with requirements that could have 
a direct and material effect on each major program and on internal control 

over compliance in accordance with OMB GrOOar A-133 

Town of Lebanon, C:onnecticut 

Compliance 

We have audited the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Town of Lebartoll, Connecticut's major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
Town of Lebanon, Connectirut's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits afStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 reqmre that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that couIdhave a direct and material effect on a major federal program ocrurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's compliance with those 
reql.tir'ements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Town of Lebanon, 
Connecticut's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut, complied in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered the Town of LebanOTI, Connecticut's internaIcontrol over compliance with reqmrements that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weaJmess in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purposed described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, the Board of Selectmen, the Board -
of Education, others within the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Stephen T. Hopkills, CPA, PC 

~~. /.1~ r ("'1
9 /-1 ./lC 

January 21, 2013 
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Summary of Audit Results 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of findings and questioned Costs 

June 30, 2012 

The following is a summary of the results of the audit of the basic financial statements of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut (the 
auditee) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 as required by U.s. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits 
alStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations § __ .505(d)(1). 

(i) The auditor's report expresses unqualified opinions on the financial statements of the auditee. 

(ii) There were five significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed by the audit of the financial statements of the auditee. 
These significant deficiencies are referenced in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item numbers 
12-01 through 12-05. None of these significant deficiencies were considered to be a material weakness. 

(iii) No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the auditee were disclosed during the audit. 

(iv) There were no significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance for major programs disclosed by the audit of the 
financial statements of the auditee. 

(v) An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs of the auditee. 

(vi) The following programs (CFDA numbers) were considered major for auditing purposes. Major programs for testing 
purposes were determined in accordance with §_.520 (e) (1) and (2) (B). Under these sections, All type A prograrnsmust 
be tested except those identified as low-risk under section (c)(I). The Town did not have any Type A program so therefore 
a risk assessment on the remaining Type B programs was performed to determine which Type B programs would need to 
be tested. As a result, four Type B programs were chosen for testing. The following programs were tested in order to meet 
the required perr.::entage of coverage. 

Housing rehabilitation loan program 
Capital assistance program for elderly persons 
and persons with disabilities 

Education jobs fund 
ARRA Energy efficiency and conservation block grant 

CFDA # 14.228 

CFDA # 20.513 
CFDA # 84.410 
CFDA # 81.128 

$190,434 

40,000 
252,544 
20,073 

$ 503,051 

(vii) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000. 

(viii) The auditee did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under §_.530. In accordance with section §_.520 (f) federal programs 
must be tested that in the aggregate encompass at least 50% of the total federal awards expended by the Town. Total federal 
awards expended by the Town were $970,163. The programs and expenditures noted above in item (vii) represent 
approximately 52% of the total federal awards expended. 

Findings Related to Financial Statements 

There were five findings relating to the basic financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with GAGAS and 
§_.505(d)(2). These five findings are related to internal control over financial reporting and are referenced in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item numbers 12-01 through 12-05. 

Findings. Questioned Costs, and Responses for Federal Awards 

There were no findings and questioned costs for Federal Awards which shalHnclude audit findings as defined in §_.510(a) which 
are required to be reported in accordance with §_.505(d)(3). 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit F:indings 

There were three findings and questioned costs related to federal award programs reported in the audit report for the auditee for 
the year ended June 30, 2011. The status of these three findings are referenced in the accompanying summary schedule of prior audit 
findings as item numbers 11-05 through 11-D7. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs (continued) 

June 30, 2012 

12-01- Accounting policies and procedures manual 

Criteria: 

The management of the Town is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls for which the design 
of the system would allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 

Condition: 

During the audit I was provided with a copy of a document labeled the Town of Lebanon - Finance Department - Policies and 
Procedures Manual. This manual was reviewed to determine that the policies and procedures contained within the manual were 
approved, when they were approved, the adequacy of the policies and procedures and whether or not it appeared as though the 
policies and procedures were being followed. ill reviewing the manual it showed that a number of seemingly significant sections 
did not contain an approved date such as the town investment policy section which includes seventeen individual items and, 
portions of the town and board of education reconciliation policies and procedures section. These sections clidcontainrevised dates 
but normally you would first have the date that a policy or procedure was approved and then a date if and when the item is 
subsequently revised. Portions of the town and board of education reconciliation policies and procedures section do contain an 
approval date of 01/13/11, however, in reviewing the provided Board of Finance minutes from this meeting they do not contain 
a motion and an approval of that motion -specifically addressing the town and board of education reconciliation policies and 
procedures. Though the Town does have a policies and procedures manual, it would appear that in its current form it is incomplete 
and inadequate in providing a system of internal controls that would allow for the prevention -or detection and correction of 
misstatements on a timely basis. Without an adequately documented and approved system of internal controls in place it cannot 
be determined that the procedures that are being followed during the day to day accounting activities are adequate to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. We do consider this condition to represent a significant deficiency in internal 
control over financial reporting. 

Context and effect: 

This type of manual is used to provide a general description of the general functions and specific duties of all personnel involved 
in the accountin~ cash receipting, and bill paying system of the Town. The manual is also used to document the specific steps to 
be used in all accounting functions such as the processing of cash disbursementsf the recording and deposit of cash receipts, the steps 
necessary to process payroll and the steps to be followed in reconciling certain accounts of the Town. The two main goals of 
developing and adequately documenting an effective set of accounting policies and procedures is to provide reasonable assurance 
that the Town's specific objectives will be achieved and to set up a system of internal controls and checks and balances which 
safeguard the assets of the Town. Without an adequately documented set of policies and procedures there can be no reasonable 
assurance present that the Town's specific objective are being achieved or that its' assets are being safeguarded. 

The reason for this condition would appear to be a lack of available time and available resources within the finance department of 
the Town. 

Recommendation: 

It does appear that the Town has made progress towards developing and documenting a system ofintemalcontrols and accounting 
polices and procedures from the prior fiscal year. We recommend that the Town move towards continuing this progress by 
completing the sections of the manual which appear to be incomplete and to make sure that all of the policies and procedures within 
the manual are presented to the Board of Finance for their review and approvaL In addition, we recommend that all of the policies 
and procedures within this manual be followed and documented and that periodically a designated individual outside of the finance 
office review the completion of these procedures to ensure that they are being followed and effectively applied. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 

We have discussed this finding with our auditor and we have been working on the completion of this type of a manual over the 
past year and hope to have the manual completed and approved by the end of the upcoming fiscal year. Due to the small nature 
of our town,"it is sometimes difficult to allocate the necessary amount of time and resources to a project such·as this. However, we 
feel we have made progress and will continue working towards the completion of this accounting policies and procedures manual. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs (continued) 

June 30, 201,2 

12-02 - Capital assets and inventory recort;! keeping 

Criteria: 

The Town is required to report capital assets as accurately as possible on its financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. As such, annual capital asset additions, deletions and capital asset balances would be reported in 
the financial statements and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Condition: 

The Town does not keep a detailed listing of its' capital assets or other inventory items which may fall below the capitalization 
threshold of the Town but which may be useful to keep track of for future planning and capital improvement purposes. As such, 
accurate dollar amounts for annual capital asset additions, deletions and capital asset balances would not be known to the Town 
during the fiscal year and most likely not until the completion of the annual audit. We do consider this condition to represent a 
significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. 

Context 

The Town has established a capital assets capitalization policy that states it will capitalize all expenses for property, plant, and 
equipment in excess of $5,000. During the current fiscal year the only items capitalized consisted of town construction projects 
expenditures and other items noted during the audit. A complete listing of new capital assets was not presented to be capitalized 
and only a listing of auctioned vehicles was- presented as being disposed of. At this time, the only way to record current year 
additions would be to scan the cash disbursements journal for items in excess of this amount and then select the invoices to 
determine whether they meet the definition of a capital asset and in tum whether or not they should be capitalized. In addition, 
the aforementioned process is in many cases unable to determine whether any items have or have not been disposed of during the 
current fiscal year. This procedure does however fall outside the scope of the current audit. In regard to other inventory items not 
meeting the $5,000 capitalization threshold, the Town should have some system in place to keep track of certain items that may need 
to be replaced at some future point in time. 

Without these steps being taken and detailed listings being kept it is difficult for the Town to have an accurate financial picrure in 
relation to their current capital assets and inventory and their potential furure needs. As a result, there can be no reasonable 
assurance present that the Town's specific objectives are being achieved both in the short term and in the long term or that its~ assets 
are being safeguarded. 

The reason for this condition would appear to be a lack of available time and available resources within the finance department of 
the Town. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend thatthe Town implement some type of system to track and record the additions and deletions of capital asseb3 when 
they are purchased and when they are disposed of. This system should consist of an initial recognition of items being purchased 
fitting the definition of a capital asset and a periodic mventory of capital asseb3 to ensure that any items being disposed of have been 
recorded as such. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 

We have discussed this audit finding with our auditor and we do understand the importance of keeping a detailed listing of our 
capital assets and other inventory items as described above. We also agree thatthe main reason that this type of detailed listing has 
not been completed is due to a lack of available time and available resources within the finance department. We have taken steps 
towards freeing up available time by hiring a part time accounting individual to assist the department in account reconciliations 
which should free up more time for either the finance director or the part time accounting individual to address this capital asset 
record keeping deficiency. We hope that this internal control deficiency will be adequately addressed during the upcoming fiscal 
year and hope that this finding will no longer be applicable going forward. 
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12-03 - Account reconciliations 

Criteria: 

Town of Lebanon, Connecti"cut 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs (continued) 

June 30, 2012 

The management of the Town is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls for which the design 
of the system would allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis. 

Condition: 

For the current fiscal year there did not appear to be an adequate system of internal controls in place to ensure that all of the asset 
and liability accounts on the trial balance of the Town were reconciled. In addition, it did not appear that there was an adequate 
system of internal controls in place to review revenue and expenditure accounts to determine if any transactions had been mis­
posted and therefore needed to be corrected. Without an adequate system of internal controls in place to ensure that all asset and 
liability accounts are being reconciled and. documenting that all revenue and expenditure accounts are being reviewed, there is no 
way to ensure that items that need to be corrected will be prevented or even detected and corrected on a timely basis. We do 
consider this condition to represent a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. 

Context 

It does appear as though monthly bank reconciliations were prepared for the majority of the cash accounts of the Town during the 
current fiscal year. However, it would appear as though the majority of the remaining balance sheet accounts went unreconciled 
during the current fiscal year. If reconciliations were prepared on these remaining balance sheet accounts, I was unable to find any 
documentation of the reconciliation and the results of the reconciliation. As a result of the audit, 64 adjusting journal entries were 
proposed for the general fund of the Town and another 66 were proposed for the other funds on the trial balance of the Town. Not 
all of these adjustments were necessarily correcting items that would have been found if reconciliations had been completed but 
a large number of them should have been found if reconciliations had been completed. In addition, I was unable to find any 
documentation showing that revenue and expenditure account had been reviewed for mis-postings during the current fiscal year 
and a number of the aforementioned adjustments were necessary to correct recorded revenue and expenditure account balances 

. on the trial balance of the Town. 

Without account reconciliations being prepared for all asset and liability accounts as well as periodic documented reviews of the 
transactions recorded in the revenue and expenditure accounts, itis difficult to have an accurate financial picture of the Town during 
the fiscal year. Without an accurate financial picture there can be no reasonable assurance presentthatthe Town's specific objectives 
are being achieved or that its' assets are being safeguarded. 

The reason for this condition would appear to be a lack of available time and available resources withln the finance department of 
the Town. This would appear to make it difficult to apportion the time needed to effectively reconcile all of the asset and liability 
accOlmts as shown on the trial balance and to perform and document the reviews of the revenue and expenditure accounts. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Town develop an adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all asset and liability accounts are 
being reconciled and that an adequate system of internal controls are in place to document the revenue and expenditure account 
reviews and that these reviews are completed and documented at least on a quarterly basis if not a monthly basis. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 

We have discussed this finding with our auditor and we do agree "With his recommendations as described above. We also agree 
that the main reason thatthis type of detailed listing has not been completed is due to a lack of available time and available resources 
witfrin the finance department We have taken steps towards freeing up available time by hirmg a part time accounting individual 
to assist the department in account reconciliations. We hope that this internal control deficiency will be adequately addressed 
during the upcoming fiscal year and hope that this finding will no longer be applicable going forward. 
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12~04 ~ Bank account reconciliations 

Criteria: 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs (continued) 

June 30, 2012 

The management of the Town is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls for which the design 
of the system would allow management or employees, ill the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis. 

Condition: 

The Town has two main checking accounts and one main deposit account from which the majority of its day to day activities are 
accounted. Accountreconciliations were prepared on these three accounts during the current fiscal year and for the most part these 
reconciliations were prepared ill a timely manner, initialed and dated by the illdividual preparing the reconciliation and by the 
individual reviewillg the reconciliation. The reconciliations did, however, conta:in a large number of reconciling items which had' 
been accumulated during the fiscal year which were never actually corrected. As a result, the actual cash balances as shown on the 
trial balance of the Town were illcorrect for the majority of the fiscal year. We do consider this condition to represent a significant 
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. 

Context: 

One of the main reasons for preparing bank account reconciliations is to make sure that the acc01111ting transactions which show 
up on the ilial balance of the Town are the same as those that show up on the corresponding bank account statements. Items which 
do not match up between the trial balance and the ba:nk statement are referred to as reconciling items. Normally reconciling items 
will show up on a given months bank reconciliation in order to balance the reconciliation. Once the reconciliation is complete and 
more time is available, these items should be researched more thoroughly and the appropriate adjusting journal entries should be 
prepared, approved and entered :into the trial balance to correct the variance. The June bank reconciliation for the general checking 
account contained 21 reconciling items from the previous July through the month of June and resulted in an ending unexplained 
variance. In addition, this bank reconciliation had not been signed off on as being prepared and reviewed when it was obtained 
as part of the audit. The June Board of Education checking account reconciliation contained a $5,250 reconciling item which had 
apparently been carried from the previous July through the entire fiscal year without being corrected. The June reconciliation for 
the Town's mam deposit account contained 21 reconciling iteins from the previous July through the month of June mcluding a 
$74,121 item relating to the prior fiscal years audit 

Without reconciling items being fully researched and corrected in a timely manner, the bank account balances as shown on the trial 
balance of the Town are incorrect and therefore it is diliicult to have an accurate financial picture of the Town during the fiscal year. 
Without an accurate financial picture there can be no reasonable assurance present that the Town's specific objectives are being 
achieved or that its~ assets are being safeguarded. 

The reason for fuis condition would appear to be a lack of available time and available resources within the finance deparbnent of 
the Town. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that all bank account reconciliations be 'prepared and reviewed in a timely manner and that all reconciling items 
be fully researched and corrected in a timely manner to ensure that the cash balances as shown on the trial balance are as accurate 
and up to date as possible throughout the fiscal year. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 

We have discussed this finding with our auditor and we do agree with his recommendations as described above. We also agree 
that the main reason that this type of detailed listing has not been completed is due to a lack of available time and available resources 
within the finance department. We have taken steps towards freeing up available time by hiring a part time accounting individual 
to assist the deparbnent in account reconciliations. We hope that this internal control deficiency will be adequately ad~essed 
during the upcoming fiscal year and hope that this finding will no longer be applicable going forward. 
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Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs (continued) 

June 30, 2012 

12"()S ~ Internal control over the results of operations 

Criteria: 

'The management of the Town is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls for which the design 
of the system would allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis. 

Condition: 

As part of the annual audit, revenue and expenditure accounts are either tied out directly to supporting documentation or other 
analytical procedures are applied to determine if either the increase or decrease in the accounts are reasonable and supported with 
specific changes in the type or volume of the related activity when they do not appear reasonable. We do recognize that at times 
there is no discemable reason for the fluctuation in revenue and expenditure accounts from one fiscal year to another. However, 
during the current fiscal year there was a reduction in a recorded revenue account from the previous fiscal year that by itself was 
not material but in looking at the decrease in the account over the previous five year period, the account has decreased from 
approximately $57,000 during the 2008 fiscal year to approximately $7,000 during the current fiscal year. During this period an 
associated account increased in value and appeared to offset the decreases in the accountm questions. However, during the current 
fiscal year, both accounts decreased seemingly dispelling the theory that the decreases in the account in question were being offset 
by the increases in the associated account. The Town has as of yet been unable to present a reasonable explanation for this material 
downward trend in this revenue account which has occurred over the aforementioned five year period. We do consider this 
condition to represent a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. 

Context 

We feel that the Town should be able to reasonably explain material fluctuations which oCCUI in revenue and expenditure accounts 
from one fiscal year to the next as well as material trends which appear to be occurring over an extended period of time. This would 
allow the Town to determine ifbudgetary amounts need to be adjusted as well as whether possible mis-posting errors are occurring 
which may be causing the fluctuations. ill addition, the Town should have some type of internal control system in place to recognize 
these types of material trends and address them in a timely manner. 

With the Town not being able to provide a reasonable explanation for the material downward trend in this account it is difficult to 
ensure that an accurate financial picture of the Town's finances is being presented during the fiscal year. Without an accurate 
financial picture there can be no reasonable assurance presentthatthe Town's specific objectives are being achieved or thatits' assets 
are being safeguarded. 

The specific cause for the material downward trend in this revenue account is unknown at this time. Itwould appear thatthe Town 
does not have an adequate system of internal controls in place to identify this type of situation so that the cause can be researched 
and identified and corrected, if necessary, in a timely manner. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the To'Wll continue to research this situation to determine if a reasonable explanation can be found and if any 
corrections are necessary they should be prepared in a timely marmer. We also recommend that a system of internal controls be 
developed and implemented in the hopes of identifying and addressing this type of situation in a more timely manner. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 

We have discussed this finding with our auditor and we do agree with his recommendations. We are continuing to research this 
item and we believe that there is a reasonable explanation for the material downward trend in this revenue account. We will address 
any necessary adjustments or corrections once our research has been completed. We also plan to more closely monitor the 
fluctuations in material revenue accounts so that they can be addressed, if necessary, in a more timely manner. 
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Town of Lebanonr Connecticut 
Summary schedule of prior audit finclings 

June 30, 2012 

11-05 - Internal control o~er compliance reporting 

Federal program: 
Federal CFDA #: 

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Education Grants, Recovery Act 
84.394 

Pass-through entity: State of Connecticut -Department of Education 
Grant period: 07/01/10 - 06/30/11 

Condition: 

As part of the auditing tests performed on this grant, copies of the quarterly reports which were submitted by the Board of Education 
for these funds were requested for review. The review of these quarterly reports consisted of, in part, a detemrination that the 
reportS were filed in a timely manner and that there is adequate documentation supporting the FIE created and retained amounts 
being reported as well as any vendor information. A file full of information relating to ARRA reporting during the fiscal year was 
made aVailable Jar review. I was unable to find copies of the reports submitted by the Board of Education for the first and second 
quarter of the fiscal year as well as any backup documentation for the amount of FIE created and retained amounts which would 
have been reported for those two quarters. I was able to find copies of the reports submitted by the Board of Education for the third 
and fourth quarters of the fiscal year, however, I was unable to find any backup documentation for the amount ofFTE created and 
retained amounts which were reported on these reports. We do consider this condition to represent a significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance reporting. 

It would appear as though the finance department of the Board of Education did review its system of internal controls relating to 
the completion and retention of all required grant filings as well as ensuring that adequate backup documentation is attached to 
copies of all required grant filings. All of the grant related reports requested during the current fiscal year were made available and 
did appear to contain adequate backup documentation. Therefore, this audit finding would appear to have been fully corrected 
as it relates to the current fiscal year testing of this type of compliance requirement and the related internal controls. 

11-06 - Internal control over allowable costs 

Federal program: 
Federal CFDA #: 
Pass-through entity: 
Grant period: 

Condition' 

Special Education Ouster (IDEA) 
84.027, 84.173, 84.391 and 84.392 
State of Connecticut - Department of Education 
07/01/10 - 06/30/11 

The speCial education department of the Board of Education uses these semi-annual certifications for the salary and wage amounts 
of individuals performing special education services and whose salaries and wages are charged in whole or in partto federal special 
education grants. The first completed and signed semi-annual certificatio~_were produced during the early stages of the audit but 
could not be produced for review near the completion of the audit. The second semi annual certifications could not be produced 
for review. We do consider this condition to represent a significant deficiency in internal control over allowable costs. 

It would appear as though the special education department of the Board of Ed~cation did review its system of internal controls 
relating to the collection and retention of these two semi-annual salary and wage certifications to ensure that they can adequately 
document their compliance with the applicable cost principles regarding salaries and wages. These two semi-annual wage 
certifications were made available during the current fiscal year audit. Therefore, this auditfinding would appear to have been fully 
c0!l'ected as it relates to the current fiscal year testing of this type of compliance requirement and the related internal controls. 
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11~07 ~ Questioned costs 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Summary schedule of prior audit findings (continued) 

June 30,2012 

Federal program: 
Federal CFDA #: 

Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B), Recovery Act 
84.391 

Pass-through entity: State of Cormecticut - Department of Education 
Grant period: 07/01/09 - 06/30/11 

Condition and questioned costs: 

During the testing of expendihrres for this grant, it was found that two invoices were paid on 06/28/11 relating to what appears 
to be initial setup and purchase amounts of $500 and $8,375 for software and license and support services through June 2012 
amounts of $300 and $8,528. The total of these two invoices which were paid on 06/28/11 was $17,703. Through a discussion with 
a member of the Board of Education it was conveyed that the initial setup and purchase of these two items occurred prior to 
06/30/11, however, the invoices do not indicate any particular dates for the initial setup and purchase of this software they are 
simply dated as 06/20/11 and 06/01/11, respectively. If the initial setup and purchase of \:his software did occur prior to the end 
of the grant period and it could be determined that a reasonable amount of benefit was received for the performance of this grant 
prior to the end of the grant period, it would seem reasonable to determine that the $500 and $8,375 portion of these payments was 
allowable to be charged to the grant. However, the license and support services which run through June 2012 would appear not 
to provide any reasonable benefit for the performance of the grant prior to the end of the grant period, and therefore it would seem 
unreasonable to determine that the $300 and $8,528 p.ortion of these invoices would be allowable to be charged to the grant. 

No information regarding any communications received by the Town or the Board of Educa"tionfrom either the federal awarding 
agency-or the pass-through agency were disclosed during the current fiscal year audit The status of this finding will be reviewed 
and reported on as part of the upcoming fiscal years audit 
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Board of Finance 
Board of Selectmen 

Stephen T. Hopkins, CPA, PC 
Auditing, Accounting, and Consulting Services 

214 Holmes Road/ Scarborough, Maine 04074/ Phone: (207) 885 - 5038/ Fax: (207) 470 - 5050 

Independent Auditors Report on compliance with requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major program and on internal control over 

compliance in accordance with the State Single Audit Act . 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 

Compliance 

We have audited the Town of Lebanon, Connecticu f 5 compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the Office 
of Policy and Management Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town of Lebanon, 
Connecticut's major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The major state programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements ofla ws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of the Town of Lebanon, 
Connecticut's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's compliance based 
on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contamed in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and the State Single Audit Act (C.Gs. Sections 4-230 to 4-236). Those standards and the State Single Audit Actrequire 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's compliance -with those requirements and perfomring 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs. In planning and performing 
our audit, we considered the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major state program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Single Audit Act, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. Amaterial weakness in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, signilicant 
deficiencies or material weakness~s. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, 
and have issued our report thereon dated January 21, 2013, which contained unqualified opinions on those financial statements. 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town 
of Lebanon, Connecticut's financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State Single Audit Act, and is not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates cfuectIy to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally -accepted in the United States of 
.America. In Qllr opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the financial statement5 as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Finance, the Board of Selectmen, the Board 
ofEducatioD, others within the entity, the Office of Policy and Management, and state awarcling agencies and pass-through entities 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone oilier than these specified parties. 

Stephen T. Hopldns, CPA, PC 

Y7~ "7 Ir' (,P,1 PC 
January 21, 2013 
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Town of Lebanon~ Connecticut 
Schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 

State grantor/pass through 
Grantor/program title 

Office of Policy and Management: 

Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) on state owned property 
Disabled program 
Property tax relief for elderly and totally disabled homeowners 
Prop'erty tax relief for veterans 
Local capital improvement program 

Department of Education: 

Healthy food initiative 
Child nutrition program state match 
Vocational Agriculture 
Adult education 
School readiness 
School readiness quality enhancement 
School breakfast program 

Connecticut State Library: 

Historic documents preservation grant 
Grants to -public libraries 
Connecticard payments 

Department of Transportation: 

Town aid road grants 
Bus operations 
Fix-it-first bridge repairs 
Pay as you go 

Department of Environmental Protection: 

Small town economic assistance program (STEAP) 

Department of Agriculture: 

Agriculture viability grant 
Farmland preservation 

Department of Economic and Community Development: 

Historic preservation activities 
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State grant program 
Core-CT number 

11000-0PM20600-17004-20l2 
1l000-OPM20600-170l1-20l2 
11000-0PM20600-170l8-20l2 
11000-0PM20600-17024-2012 
12050-0PM20600-40254-2012 

11000-SDE64370-16212-2012 
1l000-SDE64370-16211-20l2 
1l000-SDE64370-17017-2012 
1l000-SDE64370-17030-20l2 
11000-SDE64370-12113-2012 
11000-SDE64370-17097-2012 
1l000-SDE64370-17046-2012 

12060-CSL66094-35150-20l2 
11000-CSL66051-17003-20l2 
11000-CSL66051-17010-20l2 

1200l-DOT57131-17036-20l2 
1200l-DOT57931-12175-20l2 
13033-DOT57151-43123-20l2 
1200l-DOT57124-12518-20l2 

12052-DEP43153-40531-20l2 

12060-DAG42710-90456-20l0 
12060-DAG42720-90460-2007 

12060-ECD46840-90455-2012 

Expenditures 

$ 32,032 
616 

28,988 
2,410 

266,121 

9,979 
4,592 

138,492 
7,532 

107,000 
3,971 
9,628 

3,500 
1,218 
1,000 

154,180 
23,831 
17,697 

32 

162,427 

24,808 
10 

19,771 



Town of Lebanonr Connecticut 
Schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance (continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 

State grantor/pass through 
Grantor / program title 

Other Departments and miscellaneous awards: 

Non-budgeted_operating appropriations 
Siting council 
Other expenses 
Other expenses 
Other expenses 

Total State Financial Assistance before exempt programs 

State Department of Education: 

Transportation of school children 
TransI>ortation of school children 
Education equalization grants 
Special education excess costs 

Department of Public Works: 

School construction pdncipal- prior projects 

Office of Policy and Management: 

Mashantucket Pequat Grant 
Municipal video competition 
Municipal revenue sharing quarterly payments 
Municipal revenue sharing annual payment 

Total exempt programs· 

Total expenditures of State Financial Assistance 

Exempt Programs 
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State grant program 
Core-CT number 

34001-JUD95162-4000l-20l2 
12008-CSC38000-40009-2012 
11000-DRS16312-10020-20l2 
11000-DRS16324-10020-2012 
11000-DSS60760-10020-2012 

11000-SDE64370-17027-2012 
11000-SDE64370-17047-20l2 
11000-SDE64370-17041-2012 
11000-SDE64370-17047-20l2 

13010-DPW27610-40901-20l2 

12009-0PM20600-17005-2012 
12060-0PM20600-35362-20l1 
12060-OPM20600-35458-20l2 
12060-OPM20600-35458-20l2 

Expenditures 

$ 

$ 

7,980 
150 
10 
52 
10 

1,028,037 

100,059 
69,781 

5,467,511 
332,167 

381,672 

32,541 
119 

24,147 
69,= 

6,477,219 

7,505,256 



Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Notes to Schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance 

For the year ended lune 30, 2012 

VariouS deparhnents and agencies of the State of Connecticut have provided financial assistance to the Town of Lebanon, 
Connecticut through grants and other authorizations in accordance with the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut These 
financial assistance programs fund several programs including but not limited to education, transportation, tax relief, and library 
programs. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable 
to governments. The following is a summary of the more signifi~ant policies relating to the aforementioned grant programs. 

Basis of Accounting 

There are two sets of basic financial statements contained in the Town of Lebanon, Connecticut's annual report as required by 
GASB Statement No. 34. The government-wide financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereas, 
the fund financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The following is a summary of such 
bases: 

Accrual Basis - Government-wide financial statements: 

Revenues are recognized when they are earned. 
Expenses are recorded when they are incurred. 

Modified Accrual Basis - Fund financial stat-ements: 

• Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available. Available includes those property tax receivables 
expected to be collected within sixty days after year end. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash 
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Intergovernmental revenues, and interest income are 
accrued, when their receipt occurs soon enough after the end of the accounting period so as to be both measurable and 
available. 

Expenditures are recorded generally when the related fund liability is incurred. This includes reimbursable expenditures 
which have been incurred by the Town and therefore m.cluded in the accompanying schedule of expenditures of state 
financial assistance but which have not yet been reimbmsed and are considered and recorded as accounts receivable. The. 
determination of when an award is expended should be based on when the activity related to the award occurs. Exceptions 
to this general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recorded when due. 

The Schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance, contained in this report, is prepared based on regulations established by 
the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management ill accordance with these regulations (Section 4-236-22), certain grants 
are not dependent on expenditure activity, and accordingly, are considered to be expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These grant 
program receipts are reflected in the expenditures column of the Schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance. 
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I. Summary of Audit Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs 

For the year .ended June 30, 2012 

Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness (es) identified? 

Significant deficiency (ies) identified? x 
• Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? 

State Financial Assistance 

yes 
yes 
yes 

x 

x 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs Unqualified 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness (es) identified? 
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 4-236-24 of the 
Regulations to the State Single Audit Act? 

Major State Programs and percentage of coverage 

yes X 
yes X 

yes X 

no 
none reported 
no 

no 
none reported 

no 

• The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit Sec. 4-230 of the Connecticut General 
Stahltes states that a Hmajor state program means any program .. excluding an exempt program, determined to 
be a major state program by the independent auditor pursuant to the requirements of the risk based approach"'. 
Under step two of this process all Type A programs must be identified. Based on the Town of Lebanon .. 
Connecticut's non-exempt expenditures of state financial assistance amount of$1 .. 028,037, a Type A program shall 
be considered a non-exempt state program for which the amount of state financial assistance expended under 
the program for the audit period equals or exceeds the larger of $200,000 or two percent (2%) of the nonstate 
entity's total nonexempt state financial assistance program expenditures. The Town of Lebanon has one Type 
A program for the CUTrent fiscal year based on the $200,000 dollar tlueshold and therefore all of its remaining 
programs would be considered Type B programs. The Town has six Type B programs for which a risk 
assessment must be performed considering the Type B programs with expenditures in excess of $25,000. 

In accordance with Subpart A of the risk assessment procedures .. the following considerations have been applied 
to the Type A programs of the Town to deterirrine whether they should be considered highrisk The dollar value 
of the applicable transactions, the complexity of the requirements of the program and as compared to other 
programs of the Town, whether the program has been tested as major during atleast one of the two most recent 
audit periods and an assessment based on professional judgement. The Town's Type A program was determined 
to be high-risk and therefore will be audited as a major program. In addition, two of the Type B programs for 
which a risk assessment was required were determined to be high-risk and will also be audited as major 
programs. The total non-exempt state financial assistance expended by the To'Wll for the current audit period 
was $1,028,037. The programs tested as major and sho'Wll below represent approximately 57% of this total. 

State grantor and program 

Local capital improvement program 
Town aid road grants 
Small to'Wll economic assistance program (STEAP) 

State grant program 
Core-CT number 

12050-0PM20600-40254-20l2 
1200l-DOT57131-17036-2012 
12052-DEP43153-40531-2012 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
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Expenditures 

$ 

$ 

$ 

266.121 
154,180 
162,427 
582,728 

200,000 



ll. Financial Statement Findings 

Town of Lebanon, Connecticut 
Schedule of flodings and questioned costs (confloued) 

For the year ended lune 30, 2012 

We issued our report dated January 21, 2013, on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other 
matters based on an audit of the financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Our report on internal control over financial reporting indicated five significant deficiencies. The details of these significant 
deficiencies can be found in the schedule of findings and questioned costs within the federal compliance section of these 
financial statements and are labeled as item numbers 12-01 through 12-05 starting on page 69. We do not consider any of 
these significant deficiencies to be a material weakness. 

Our report on compliance indicated no reportable instances of noncompliance. 

ill. State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

No findings or questioned costs are being reported relating to State financial assistance programs. 
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